
 

 

AGENDA 
City of Lucas  

City Council Regular Meeting  
September 3, 2015  

6:30 PM 
City Hall – Council Chambers 

665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas  
 

Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas Regular City Council Meeting will be held on Thursday, September 3, 
2015 at 6:30pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, 75002-7651 at which time the following 
agenda will be discussed. As authorized by Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may 
convene into closed Executive Session for the purpose of seeking confidential legal advice from the City Attorney 
on any item on the agenda at any time during the meeting. 

 
Call to Order 

 
• Roll Call 
• Determination of Quorum 
• Reminder to turn off or silence cell phones 
• Pledge of Allegiance 

Closed Executive Session 
(Conference Room) 

The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government 
Code. 
 
1. Executive Session:  Pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code 

(Personnel Matters) the City Council will convene into Executive Session to discuss the 
evaluation for the City Secretary. (Mayor Jim Olk) 

 
A. Take any action necessary from the Executive Session.  
B. Convene into regular open session.  

 
2. Recess City Council meeting to convene meeting of the Lucas Fire Control, Prevention 

and EMS District.  Regular City Council meeting will reconvene immediately following 
the Lucas Fire Control, Prevention and EMS District meeting. (Mayor Jim Olk) 

 
3. Reconvene City Council meeting. (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 



 

Regular Open Session 
7:05 PM 

Council Chambers 
(or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control, Prevention & EMS District meeting)  

 
Citizen Input 

The Citizens’ Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  
By completing a “Request to Speak” form and submitting it to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to 
speak at the City Council meeting.  However, in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council 
cannot discuss issues raised or make any decisions at this time but may refer items to City Staff for research and 
possible inclusion on a future agenda. 
 
4. Citizen Input (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 

Community Interest 
Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items 1) 
expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of 
individuals; 4) reminders about upcoming City Council events; 5) information about community events; and 6) 
announcements involving imminent threat to public health and safety. 
 
5. Community Interest (Mayor Jim Olk) 
 

Consent Agenda 
All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommend to the City Council for a single 
vote approval.  If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote. 
 
6. Consider approval of the minutes of the August 20, 2015 City Council meeting. (City 

Secretary Stacy Henderson) 
 
7. Consider authorizing the City Manager to cast the official ballot on behalf of the City of 

Lucas for the election of the Board of Trustees – TML Region 13 for the Texas Municipal 
League Intergovernmental Risk Pool. (Human Resources Manager Cheryl Meehan) 

Public Hearings 
 
8. Consider adopting Ordinance 2015-09-00820 for a zoning change request from AO to R-2 

for a parcel of land situated in the City of Lucas, being part of the John W. Kerby Survey, 
Abstract No. 506, part of Tract 1 of Tokalaun Equestrian Addition, containing 6.942 acres 
of land more commonly known as the property adjacent to Mary Lee Lane north of the 
intersection of Mary Lee and Blondy Jhune Road.  (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
 A.  Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 B.  Conduct Public Hearing 
 C.  Take Action – Consider adopting Ordinance  
 
9. Public Hearing to consider the budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. (Finance Director Liz Exum) 
 

A. Conduct public hearing  
B. No action necessary, discussion item only 

 



10. Public Hearing to consider the tax rate for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. (Finance Director Liz Exum) 
 

A. Conduct public hearing  
B. No action necessary, discussion item only 

Regular Agenda 
 
11. Consider the request by Todd Wintters on behalf of Cleve Adamson Custom Homes for 

preliminary plat approval of a parcel of land situated in the City of Lucas, being part of the 
John W. Kerby Survey, Abstract No. 506, being part of Tract 1 and Tract 2 of Tokalaun 
Equestrian Addition, containing 25.492 acres of land more commonly known as the 
property adjacent to Mary Lee Lane north of the intersection of Mary Lee and Blondy Jhune 
Road. (Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 

 
12. Consider adopting Resolution R-2015-09-00439 adopting City of Lucas Investment Policy. 

(Finance Director Liz Exum) 
 
13. Consider amendments to the City’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 15, Master Fee Schedule. 

(Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn) 
 
14. Consider adopting Ordinance 2015-09-00821 updating Chapter 9 – Personnel of the City’s 

Code of Ordinances. (Human Resources Manager Cheryl Meehan) 
 

Certification 

I hereby certify that the above notice was posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings 
Act on the bulletin board at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, TX 75002-7651 
and on the City’s website at www.lucastexas.us on or before 5:00 p.m. on Friday, August 28, 
2015.   

____________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City of Lucas will provide for reasonable 
accommodations for persons attending public meetings at City Hall. Requests for accommodations or interpretive 
services should be directed to Stacy Henderson at 972.912.1211 or by email at shenderson@lucastexas.us at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting. 



Item No. 01 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

September 3, 2015 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Executive Session:   
 
Pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code (Personnel Matters) the City 
Council will convene into Executive Session to discuss the evaluation for the City Secretary. 
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 



Item No. 02 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

September 3, 2015 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Recess City Council meeting to convene meeting of the Lucas Fire Control Prevention and EMS 
District.  Regular City Council meeting will reconvene immediately following the Lucas Fire 
Control, Prevention and EMS District meeting. 
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 



Item No. 03 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Mayor Jim Olk 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

September 3, 2015 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Reconvene City Council meeting. 
 
Background Information:  
 
NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 



Item No. 04 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson  

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

September 3, 2015 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
 Citizen Input  
 
Background Information:  
 
  NA 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 

 



Item No. 05 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson  

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

September 3, 2015 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Community Interest  
 
Background Information:  
 
There are no Community Interest items for this meeting.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
NA 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
 NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
NA 

 



Item No. 06-07 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: City Secretary Stacy Henderson  

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

September 3, 2015 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consent Agenda: 
 
6. Consider approval of the minutes of the August 20, 2015 City Council meeting.  
 
7. Consider authorizing the City Manager to cast the official ballot on behalf of the City of 

Lucas for the election of the Board of Trustees – TML Region 13 for the Texas Municipal 
League Intergovernmental Risk Pool. 

 
Background Information:  
 
Agenda Item No. 7 
 
This is the official ballot for the election of the Board of Trustees - TML Region 13 for the Texas 
Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool.  Each Member of the Pool is entitled to vote for 
Board of Trustee members.  Ballots must be received prior to September 28, 2015. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Minutes of the August 20, 2015 City Council meeting. 
2. TML Official Ballot   
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
NA 
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the Consent Agenda as presented.  

 



1 
 

City of Lucas  
City Council Meeting  

August 20, 2015 
7:05 PM 

(or immediately following the Fire District Meeting) 

City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas  
 

Minutes 
 

Call to Order 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
Council Members Present: 
Mayor Pro Tem Kathleen Peele 
Councilmember Debbie Fisher 
Councilmember Wayne Millsap 
Councilmember Philip Lawrence 
Councilmember Steve Duke  
 

Staff: 
City Manager Joni Clarke 
City Secretary Stacy Henderson 
City Attorney Joe Gorfida 
Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
Public Works Director Stanton Foerster 
Fire Chief Jim Kitchens 
Finance Director Liz Exum 

Council Members Absent: 
Mayor Jim Olk  
Councilmember Tim Baney  

 

 
It was determined that a quorum was present. 
Everyone was reminded to turn off or silence cell phones. 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Citizen Input 
 
1. Citizen Input 
 
James Ruffin, 425 W. Blondy Jhune Trail, stated that he wanted to speak in opposition to the 
preliminary plat for the Tokalaun Addition that was recently approved by the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and will be heard by the City Council at their next meeting.  The plat was 
approved without public comment or any consideration to the deed restrictions and covenants in 
place for the neighborhood.   Mr. Ruffin stated that the platting process denies the public any 
input related to approval of a plat and he believed that the language in Code of Ordinances 
should be amended to allow for public input.  
  



2 
 

Community Interest 
 
2. Community Interest Items.  
 
Councilmember Fisher announced that Collin County was under a fire warning and no outdoor 
burning for any reason was allowed.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele announced that volunteers were still needed for the Founders Day Stick 
Horse Rodeo event. 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
3. Consider approval of the minutes of the July 21, 2015 joint Budget Workshop meeting 

of the City Council and the Lucas Fire Control, Prevention and EMS District meeting.  
 
4. Consider approval of the minutes of the August 6, 2015 City Council meeting.   
 
5. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into Amendment No. 8 of an 

Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lucas and Collin County for On-Site 
Sewage Facility for a period of one (1) year ending September 30, 2016.  

 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Duke, seconded by Councilmember 

Millsap to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  The motion passed 
unanimously by a 5 to 0 vote. 

Public Hearings 
 
6. Public Hearing to consider the budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016.  
 
A presentation was given by Finance Director, Liz Exum outlining the following amendments to 
the budget that were discussed at the August 6, 2015 City Council meeting:  

• Final numbers were received from the Collin County Property tax Assessor and property 
tax revenue was increased by $32,009. 

• The Fire District Transfer-In was moved from Miscellaneous Revenue to Fire 
Department Revenue. 

• Preliminary Budget Estimates for FY 2015-2016 were received from NTMWD for 
Regional Wastewater and the Upper East Fork Interceptor System and Wastewater Costs 
were increased by $650 in the Water Fund.   

• Detailed descriptions referencing “Captain Positons” were removed from the Fire 
Department Budget. 

• $100,000 was reclassified from the Parker Road 12 Inch Loop Line to Water System 
Improvements in the Capital Fund to address the emergency issue with water demand 
exceeding water capacity. 

• Metropolitan Infrastructure Study to determine pavement types and depths $36,500  
 



3 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Peele opened the public hearing at 7:13pm asking if anyone wanted to speak 
regarding this agenda item.  There being none, the public hearing was closed at 7:13pm.  
 
Councilmember Fisher and Mayor Pro Tem Peele noted that with the additional information 
provided regarding the availability of volunteer firefighters, they were in support of providing 
additional funds for the hiring of Fire Department positions, but that staffing concerns would 
need to be addressed in the future. 
 
No action was taken on this item, it was a discussion purposes only.  
 
7. Public Hearing to consider the tax rate for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 
A brief presentation was given by Finance Director Liz Exum stating the proposed tax rate for 
Fiscal Year 2015-2016 was as follows: 
 
             $0.215514 for Maintenance and Operations 
  $0.105147 for Debt Service (Interest & Sinking) 
  $0.320661 Total Tax Rate 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele opened the public hearing at 7:16pm asking if anyone in the audience 
wanted to speak regarding this agenda item.  There being none, the public hearing was closed at 
7:16pm.  
 
No action was taken on this item, it was for discussion only.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele announced that they would be moving to Agenda Item No 9 on the 
Regular Agenda.  
 

Regular Agenda 
 
9. Fire Department Promotion Ceremony: Promotion of EMS Officer Ted Stephens to 

Assistant Fire Chief.  
 
Fire Chief Jim Kitchens conducted the promotion ceremony for Ted Stephens, EMS Officer to 
Assistant Fire Chief.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele announced that they would be returning to Agenda Item No. 8 on the 
Public Hearing portion of the Agenda.  
 

Public Hearing 
 
8. Public Hearing to consider adopting Ordinance 2015-08-00816 amending Chapter 

14 of the City’s Code of Ordinances.  
1. Sec. 14.01.004  Definitions 
2.  Sec. 14.02.032    Organization and procedure 
3. Sec. 14.02.033    Appeals 



4 
 

2. Sec. 14.03.113      Area regulations 
3. Sec. 14.03.173      Area regulations 
4. Sec. 14.03.233   Area regulations 
5. Sec. 14.03.293      Building regulations 
6. Sec. 14.03.296      Site plan approval 
7. Sec. 14.03.297      Landscaping plan approval 
8. Sec. 14.03.353      Development regulations 
9. Sec. 14.03.472      Building regulations 
10. Sec. 14.04.253      General provisions 
11. Sec. 14.04.304      General accessory buildings and structures regulations 
12.  Changes brought forward by the City Council. 

  
A brief presentation was given by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn stating that all 
the amendments suggested from the previous City Council meeting had been made.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Peele opened the public hearing at 7:25pm asking if anyone wanted to speak 
regarding this agenda item.  There being none, the public hearing was closed at 7:26pm.  
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Council Lawrence 

to approve Ordinance 2015-08-00816 amending Section 14.01.004, Definitions, 
Section 14.03.113, Area Regulations, Section 14.02.032 Organization and 
Procedure, Section 14.02.033 Appeals, Section 14.03.173 Area Regulations, 
Section 14.03.293, Section 14.03.293 Building Regulations,   Section 14.03.296 
Site Plan Approval,  Section 14.03.297 Landscaping Plan Approval, Section 
14.03.353 Development Regulations, Section 14.03.472 Building regulations, 
Section 14.04.253 General Provisions, Section 14.04.304 General accessory 
buildings and structure regulations.  The motion passed unanimously by a 5 to 0 
vote.  

 
Regular Agenda 

 
10. Discuss water surcharge for large volume users.  
 
A presentation was given by Finance Director Liz Exum stating recently the City Council had 
been informed of an emergency water situation concerning the demand on current infrastructure 
and water system capacity and at that time the City Council discussed considering a water 
surcharge for high volume consumers.  
 
Councilmember Fishier stated that a surcharge was in order for larger water consumers that are 
not conserving and suggested the surcharge occur when a certain amount of water had been used. 
Councilmember Fisher stated that current infrastructure cannot handle the demand.  
 
Councilmember Lawrence discussed placing a cap on the amount of water that could be used.  
 



5 
 

Councilmember Millsap discussed the amount of water the City purchases versus the water 
volume usage trends that had been going down. Efforts need to be made to better educate the 
public and the need to look at rate structure.   
 
Councilmember Duke asked if any renegotiation of the City’s contract could be made with the 
water district.  
 
City Manager Joni Clarke stated that funds were available in next year’s budget for a rate study 
and suggested having a workshop to discuss the City’s infrastructure needs.   
 
City Council and Staff discussed holding a workshop in November. 
 
This was a discussion item only, no action was taken.  
 

Executive Session 
 
11. Executive Session. 
 
There was no Executive Session for this meeting.  
 
12.  Adjournment. 
 
MOTION: A motion was made by Councilmember Millsap, seconded by Councilmember 

Lawrence to adjourn the meeting at 7:50 pm.  The motion passed unanimously by 
a 5 to 0 vote. 

 
 
 
APPROVED:     

 
       
Kathleen Peele, Mayor Pro Tem  
  
      
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
 







Item No. 08 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

September 3, 2015 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider adopting Ordinance 2015-09-00820 for a zoning change request from AO to R-2 for a 
parcel of land situated in the City of Lucas, being part of the John W. Kerby Survey, Abstract 
No. 506, part of Tract 1 of Tokalaun Equestrian Addition, containing 6.942 acres of land more 
commonly known as the property adjacent to Mary Lee Lane north of the intersection of Mary 
Lee and Blondy Jhune Road.  
 
 A. Presentation by Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn 
 B.  Conduct Public Hearing 
 C. Take Action – Consider Adopting Ordinance  
 
Background Information:  
 
This property has been platted as part of a sub-division of land named Tokalaun Estuary, it was 
never re-zoned. This request matches the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  

 
1. Ordinance 2015-09-00820 
2. Public notice 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA   
 
Recommendation from Planning and Zoning Commission:  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission voted unanimously to approve the rezoning request.  
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny Ordinance 2015-09-00820 for a zoning change request from 
AO to R-2 for a parcel of land situated in the City of Lucas, being part of the John W. Kerby 
Survey, Abstract No. 506, part of Tract 1 of Tokalaun Equestrian Addition, containing 6.942 
acres of land. 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2015-09-00820 (Takalaun Equestrian Addition) 
Approved:  September 3, 2015 

ORDINANCE 2015-09-00820 
[TOKALAUN EQUESTRIAN ADDITION/CHANGE IN ZONING] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE AND MAP OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A CHANGE 
IN ZONING CLASSIFICATION FROM AGRICULTURAL (“AO”) TO 
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL, 2-ACRE LOTS (“R2”), FOR THE ±6.942 
ACRE TRACT OF LAND, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED 
IN EXHIBIT “A” AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT “B” ATTACHED 
HERETO; PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF 
TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Lucas, Texas and the City 
Council of the City of Lucas, Texas, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas with 
reference to the granting of zoning classifications and changes, have given the requisite notices by 
publication and otherwise, and have held due hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all 
property owners generally and to all persons interested and situated in the affected area and in the 
vicinity thereof, and the City Council of the City of Lucas, Texas is of the opinion and finds that 
said zoning change should be granted and that the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map 
should be amended;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. That the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and Map of the City of Lucas, Texas are 
hereby amended to grant a change in zoning from Agricultural (“AO”) to Single Family 
Residential, 2-Acre Lots, (“R2”) for the ±6.942-acre tract of land, being more particularly described 
in Exhibit “A” and depicted in Exhibit “B”, attached hereto and made part hereof for all purposes.   
 
Section 2. That all ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions 
of said Ordinances are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 3. That should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section 
of this Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged or 
held to be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 



 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2015-09-00820 (Takalaun Equestrian Addition) 
Approved:  September 3, 2015 

Section 4. An offense committed before the effective date of the Ordinance is governed by 
prior law and the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances in effect when the offense 
was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 
 
Section 5. That any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms of this 
Ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Code of Ordinances, as 
amended, and upon conviction in the municipal court shall be punished by a fine not to exceed the 
sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense, and each and every day such violation 
shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
Section 6. That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained 
 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNSEL OF THE CITY OF 
LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 3rd DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2015. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ ____________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr.    Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
(08-24-15/72992) 
 
 
      



 
Exhibit “A” 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2015-09-00820 Takalaun Equestrian Addition) 
Approved:  September 3, 2015 

EXHIBIT “A” 
METES & BOUNDS  

 
SITUATED in the State of Texas, County of Collin and City of Lucas, being part of the John W. 
Kerby Survey, Abstract No. 506, being part of Tract 1 of Tokalaun Equestrian Addition, an 
addition to the City of Lucas as recorded in Volume N, Page 898 of the Collin County Map 
Records with said premises being more particularly described as follows:  
 
COMMENCING at a point in the west right-of-way line of Mary Lee Lane (90’ R.O.W.)  
marking the southeast corner of Lot 4, Block 3 of Forest Creek Estates, an addition to the City of 
Lucas as recorded in Volume K, Page 44 of the Collin County Land Records;  
 
THENCE South 09°17’53” East, 485.72 feet to a Roome capped iron rod set in the west right-of-
way line of Mary Lee Lane marking the POINT OF BEGINNING, the southeast corner of said 
Tract 3 and the northeast corner of Tract 2 of said Tokalaun Equestrian Addition;  
 
THENCE with the north line of said tract 2, and the south line of said Tract 3, North 85°12'59" 
West, 983.56 feet to a Roome capped iron rod set for the northwest corner of said Tract 2 and the 
southwest corner of said Tract 3; 
 
THENCE with the west line of said tract 3, North 13°00'37" East, 427.20 feet to northwest corner 
of said Tract 1 in the south boundary line of said Forest Creek Estates; 
 
THENCE with the north line of said Tract 3 and the south line of said Forest Creek Estates, 
South 88°39'20" East, 466.14 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE South 00°12'30" West, 288.07 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE North 84°14'55" East, 199.21 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE North 79°24'31" East, 150.04 feet to a point for corner in the east line of said Tract 3 
and the west right-of-way line of said Mary Lee Lane, said point being the beginning of a non-
tangent curve to the left having a radius of 495.41 feet whose chord bears South 17°45'20" East, 
123.47 feet; 
 
THENCE Southeasterly, with the west right-of-way line of Mary Lee Lane and the east line of 
said Tract 3 and with said curve to the left, through a central angle of 14°19'01", an arc distance 
of 123.79 feet to the beginning of a reverse curve to the right having a radius of 404.55 feet 
whose chord bears South 15°23'51" East, 134.00 feet; 
 
THENCE Southeasterly, continuing with the west right-of-way line of Mary Lee Lane and the 
east line of said Tract 3 and with said curve to the right, through a central angle of 19°04'00", an 
arc distance of 134.62 feet to the place of beginning and containing 6.942 acres of land. 
 
 



 
Exhibit “B” 
City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2015-09-00820 (Takalaun Equestrian Addition) 
Approved:  September 3, 2015 

EXHIBIT “B” 
DEPICTION 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the Planning & Zoning Commission of the City 
of Lucas, Texas (the “City”), will conduct a Public Hearing on Thursday, August 13, 
2015 at 7:00 p.m. and City Council will conduct a second Public Hearing on 
Thursday, September 03, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club, 
Lucas, Texas to consider a request for a change in zoning on a parcel of land 
described as follows: 
 
SITUATED in the State of Texas, County of Collin and City of Lucas, being part of the 
John W. Kerby Survey, Abstract No. 506, being part of Tract 1 of Tokalaun Equestrian 
Addition, an addition to the City of Lucas as recorded in Volume N, Page 898 of the 
Collin County Map Records with said premises being more particularly described as 
follows:  
 
COMMENCING at a point in the west right-of-way line of Mary Lee Lane (90’ R.O.W.)  
marking the southeast corner of Lot 4, Block 3 of Forest Creek Estates, an addition to the 
City of Lucas as recorded in Volume K, Page 44 of the Collin County Land Records;  
THENCE South 09°17’53” East, 485.72 feet to a Roome capped iron rod set in the west 
right-of-way line of Mary Lee Lane marking the POINT OF BEGINNING, the southeast 
corner of said Tract 3 and the northeast corner of Tract 2 of said Tokalaun Equestrian 
Addition;  
 
THENCE with the north line of said tract 2, and the south line of said Tract 3, North 
85°12'59" West, 983.56 feet to a Roome capped iron rod set for the northwest corner of 
said Tract 2 and the southwest corner of said Tract 3; 
 
THENCE with the west line of said tract 3, North 13°00'37" East, 427.20 feet to 
northwest corner of said Tract 1 in the south boundary line of said Forest Creek Estates; 
 
THENCE with the north line of said Tract 3 and the south line of said Forest Creek 
Estates, South 88°39'20" East, 466.14 feet to a point for corner; 
 



THENCE South 00°12'30" West, 288.07 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE North 84°14'55" East, 199.21 feet to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE North 79°24'31" East, 150.04 feet to a point for corner in the east line of said 
Tract 3 and the west right-of-way line of said Mary Lee Lane, said point being the 
beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left having a radius of 495.41 feet whose chord 
bears South 17°45'20" East, 123.47 feet; 
 
THENCE Southeasterly, with the west right-of-way line of Mary Lee Lane and the east 
line of said Tract 3 and with said curve to the left, through a central angle of 14°19'01", 
an arc distance of 123.79 feet to the beginning of a reverse curve to the right having a 
radius of 404.55 feet whose chord bears South 15°23'51" East, 134.00 feet; 
 
THENCE Southeasterly, continuing with the west right-of-way line of Mary Lee Lane 
and the east line of said Tract 3 and with said curve to the right, through a central angle of 
19°04'00", an arc distance of 134.62 feet to the place of beginning and containing 6.942 
acres of land. 
 
Those wishing to speak FOR or AGAINST the above item are invited to attend.  If 
you are unable to attend and have comments you may send them to City of Lucas, 
Attention:  City Secretary, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas  75002, email 
shenderson@lucastexas.us, or Fax 972-727-0091 and it will be presented at the 
Hearing. If you have any question about the request please contact Joe Hilbourn 
at jhilbourn@lucastexas.us   
 
  

mailto:shenderson@lucastexas.us
mailto:jhilbourn@lucastexas.us


Item No. 09 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Finance Director – Liz Exum 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

September 3, 2015 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Public Hearing to consider the budget for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 

A. Conduct public hearing  
B. No action necessary, discussion item only 

  
Background Information:  
 
This is the second of two required public hearings. The first public hearing was held August 20, 
2015. Consideration and action by the City Council will occur on September 17, 2015.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Detailed Proposed Budget for FY 2015-2016. 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
The financial impact for the proposed budget is varied and is outlined in detail to be reviewed 
and discussed.  
 
Recommendation:  
 
Public Hearing only, no action is required. 
 
Motion:  
 
N/A 



 
CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS 

 

ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 

This budget will raise more revenue from property taxes than last 

year’s budget by an amount of $304,615, which is a 13.74 percent 

increase from last year’s budget.  The property tax revenue to be 

raised from new property added to the tax roll this year is $136,133. 
 

The members of the governing body voted on the proposal to consider the 

budget as follows:  
 

FOR:    

 

AGAINST: 

 

PRESENT and not voting: 

 

ABSENT:  

 

Property Tax Rate Comparison           2015-2016  2014-2015  

 

Property Tax Rate:                     $0.320661/100      $0.320661/100 

Effective Tax Rate:                    $0.295929/100      $0.326017/100                           

Effective Maintenance & Operations Tax Rate:  $0.216160/100      $0.214440/100 

Rollback Tax Rate :          $0.340103/100     $0.320661/100  

Debt Rate:            $0.105147/100     $0.087593/100 

 

Total debt obligation for City of Lucas secured by property taxes: $826,739 



CITY OF LUCAS 
Proposed Budget 

Fiscal Year 2015-2016 
 

 

Mayor 
Jim Olk 

Mayor Pro-Tem: Kathleen Peele 
Councilwoman: Debbie Fisher 

Councilman: Wayne Millsap 
Councilman: Phil Lawrence 

Councilman: Tim Baney 
Councilman: Steve Duke  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Joni Clarke, City Manager 

Liz Exum, Finance Director 



OVERVIEW

Organizational Chart Page 1

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Total Funds Budget Overview Pages 2-3

General Fund Balance Summary Page 4

Water Fund Balance Summary Page 5

Capital Fund Summary Page 6

Impact/Development Fee Summary Page 7

Tax Revenue Comparisons Page 8

OPERATING BUDGET

GENERAL FUND:

General Fund Revenue Summary Chart Page 9

General Fund Departmental Expenditures Chart Page 10

Revenue Pages 11-12

City Council Page 13

City Secretary Page 14

Administration/Finance Page 15

Public Works Page 16

Parks Page 17

Development Services Page 18

Fire Department Page 19-20

Non-Departmental Page 21

CAPITAL FUND:

Capital Improvements Revenue Summary Page 22

Capital Improvements - Water and General Fund Page 23

WATER FUND:

Water Fund Revenue Summary Chart Page 24

Water Fund Expenditures Summary Chart Page 25

Revenue Page 26

Water Page 27-28

Water Debt Service Page 29

DEBT SERVICE FUND:

Debt Service Summary Page 30

TABLE OF CONTENTS



Page 1 

 

 

 



2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

GENERAL FUND
PROPERTY TAXES 1,739,012 1,808,516 1,812,966 1,892,509

OTHER TAXES 1,133,057 1,065,500 1,178,746 1,179,700
FINES & FORFEITURES 20,957 1,873 959 522
LICENSES & PERMITS 503,763 429,625 550,105 564,130
FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUE 211,392 532,764 481,702 563,243
FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 70,102 88,075 131,075 82,600
NOTE PROCEEDS 345,000 0 0 0
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 328,302 320,477 461,247 380,216

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE 4,351,585 4,246,830 4,616,801 4,662,920
 

WATER UTILITIES FUND
FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 3,071,097 3,361,782 2,963,850 3,661,870
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 56,396 35,370 395,855 34,550

TOTAL WATER UTILITIES FUND REVENUE 3,127,493 3,397,152 3,359,705 3,696,420

DEBT SERVICE FUND
PROPERTY TAXES 691,656 619,210 644,308 836,839

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE FUND REVENUE 691,656 619,210 644,308 836,839

COMBINED REVENUE TOTALS 8,170,734 8,263,192 8,620,813 9,196,179

EXPENDITURES
GENERAL FUND
CITY COUNCIL 38,169 53,174 30,224 27,450
CITY SEC 130,230 140,460 136,875 142,660
ADMIN/FINANCE 411,745 470,923 480,867 526,490
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 248,614 312,144 371,612 312,621
PUBLIC WORKS 1,040,508 1,132,857 1,176,154 1,209,750
PARKS 95,205 129,437 151,595 144,400
FIRE 1,645,744 1,263,806 1,456,157 1,623,092
NON-DEPARTMENTAL 403,701 502,396 400,907 428,866

TOTAL  GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 4,013,916 4,005,197 4,204,391 4,415,329

WATER UTILITIES FUND  
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,501,618 2,863,193 2,827,704 3,088,383

DEBT SERVICE
 WATER UTILITIES 533,220 530,364 530,364 522,716
 GENERAL FUND 612,211 608,811 608,811 826,739

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 1,145,431 1,139,175 1,139,175 1,349,454
 
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,660,965 8,007,565 8,171,270 8,853,167

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 509,769 255,626 449,544 343,012

PROPOSED 

BUDGET
REVENUE SUMMARY

Page 2 08/13/2015



2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET
PROPOSED 

BUDGET
REVENUE SUMMARYSUMMARY BY FUND

  GENERAL FUND
     REVENUE 4,351,585 4,246,830 4,616,801 4,662,920
     EXPENDITURES 4,013,916 4,005,197 4,204,391 4,415,329

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 337,669 241,632 412,409 247,591

WATER UTILITES FUND
     REVENUE 3,127,493 3,397,152 3,359,705 3,696,420
     EXPENDITURES 2,501,618 2,863,193 2,827,704 3,088,383
     DEBT SERVICE 533,220 530,364 530,364 522,716

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 92,655 3,595 1,637 85,322

DEBT SERVICE FUND-GENERAL
     REVENUE 691,656 619,210 644,308 836,839
     EXPENDITURES 612,211 608,811 608,811 826,739

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 79,445 10,399 35,498 10,100

NET REVENUE LESS EXPENDITURES 509,769 255,626 449,544 343,012

Page 3 08/13/2015



CITY OF LUCAS ANNUAL BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016

FUND SUMMARIES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMBINED SUMMARY OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

DEBT CAPITAL BROCKDALE RTR/TXDOT IMPACT TOTAL
GENERAL SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS ROAD IMPROV COUNTY/LCA FEES GOVERNMENTAL 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 6,073,989 427,403 2,000,000 97,935 1,252,301 848,798 10,700,426

PROPERTY TAXES 1,892,509 836,839 2,729,348
OTHER TAXES 1,179,700 1,179,700
FINES & FORFEITURES 522 522
LICENSES & PERMITS 564,130 564,130
FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUE 563,243 563,243
FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 82,600 82,600
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 380,216 6,000 50,000 436,216
IMPACT FEES 200,000 200,000
RTR FUNDS LEFT TURN LANES 0
RTR FUNDS FM 1378 0
PARKS GRANT 106,480 106,480
COUNTY FUNDS 244,000 244,000
TRANSFER IN RESERVES 11,000 11,000
TRANSFER IN IMPACT FEES 0

TOTAL REVENUES 4,662,920 836,839 123,480 50,000 244,000 200,000 6,117,239

EXPENDITURES

CITY COUNCIL 27,450 27,450
CITY SEC 142,660 142,660
ADMIN/FINANCE 526,490 526,490
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 312,621 312,621
PUBLIC WORKS 1,209,750 1,209,750
PARKS 144,400 144,400
FIRE 1,623,092 1,623,092
NON-DEPARTMENTAL 428,866 428,866
DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL 620,641 620,641
DEBT SERVICE INTEREST/BOND EXP 206,098 206,098
CAPITAL PROJECTS ESTATES PKWY/ROCK RIDGE INTERSECTION(PARTIAL FUNDING) 320,000 320,000
CAPITAL PROJECTS (BLONDY JHUNE RD) 90,000 90,000
CAPITAL PROJECTS CC/W LUCAS RD -RTR 62,572 15,643 78,215
CAPITAL PROJECTS RTR  W LUCAS RD TO ANGEL PKWY 1,408,890 47,223 1,456,113
PARKS PROJECT 117,480 117,480
CAPITAL PROJECTS BLONDY JHUNE RD BRIDGES/SAFETY PROJECT 2,000,000 2,000,000
CAPITAL PROJECTS BAIT SHOP 100,000 100,000
CAPITAL PROJECTS SAFETY ENHANCEMENTS 0
CAPITAL PROJECTS WINNINGKOFF S-CURVE 0

TOTAL  EXPENDITURES 4,415,329 826,739 2,117,480 0 1,471,462 572,866 9,403,876

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 247,591 10,100 (1,994,000) 50,000 (1,227,462) (372,866) (3,286,637)

ENDING FUND BALANCE 6,321,580 437,503 6,000 147,935 24,839 475,932 7,413,789
 
MINUS RESTRICTED FOR:

IMPACT FEES (475,932) (475,932)

LCA RESTRICTED (24,839) (24,839)

BROCKDALE ROAD IMPROVEMENTS (147,935) (147,935)

RESTRICTED FOR CAPITAL OUTLAY - GENERAL FUND (50,000) (50,000)
DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS (437,503) (437,503)
MUNICIPAL COURT (43,729) (43,729)
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (6,000) (6,000)

UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE 6,227,851 0 0 0 0 0 6,227,851

TOTAL AMOUNT OF RESERVES PRIOR TO GASB 54 REQUIREMENT 6,227,851 0 0 0 6,227,851

AMOUNT IN DAYS OPERATING COST 515 515
AMOUNT IN MONTHS OPERATING COST 17 17

RESERVES FOR GASB 54 FUND BALANCE POLICY 
(50% OF CURRENT YR EXPENDITURES IN GENERAL FUND) (2,207,665) (2,207,665)

TOTAL RESERVES AFTER GASB 54 REQUIREMENTS 4,020,186 4,020,186

AMOUNT IN DAYS OPERATING COST 332 332
AMOUNT IN MONTHS OPERATING COST 11 11

Page 4 08/13/2015



Page 5 08/13/2015CITY OF LUCAS ANNUAL BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016

FUND SUMMARIES - PROPRIETARY 

COMBINED SUMMARY OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

CAPITAL IMPACT /DEVELOP TOTAL
WATER IMPROVEMENTS FEES PROPRIETARY

BEGINNING BALANCE RESTRICTED/UNRESTRICTED 4,223,969 0 0 4,223,969

WATER REVENUE 3,198,870 3,198,870
WASTE WATER REVENUE 34,000 34,000
TRASH REVENUE 429,000 429,000
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 34,550 34,550
REFUND NTMWD CAPITAL 50,000 50,000
IMPACT FEES 150,000 150,000
TRANSFER IN IMPACT FEES 150,000 150,000
TRANSFER IN FUND BALANCE - WATER 604,570 604,570
TOTAL REVENUES 3,696,420 804,570 150,000 4,650,990

EXPENDITURES

WATER 2,680,983 2,680,983
TRASH 380,000 380,000
WASTEWATER 27,400 27,400
DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL 365,000 365,000
DEBT SERVICE INTEREST/BOND EXP 157,716 157,716
TRANSFER OUT TO FUND WATER PROJECT 0 0
TRANSFER OUT TO FUND WATER PROJECT 150,000 150,000
CAPITAL PROJECTS WF 804,570 804,570

0

TOTAL  EXPENDITURES 3,611,099 804,570 150,000 4,565,669

NET CHANGE IN BALANCE 85,322 0 0 85,322

ENDING BALANCE 4,309,291 0 0 4,309,291
 
MINUS RESTRICTED FOR:

IMPACT FEES 0 0
DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS (365,000) (365,000)
CUSTOMER DEPOSITS (205,125) (205,125)
TRSF TO CAPITAL FROM RESERVES (604,570) 0 (604,570)
UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE 3,134,596 0 0 3,134,596

TOTAL AMOUNT OF RESERVES PRIOR TO GASB 54 REQUIREMENT 3,134,596 0 0 3,134,596

AMOUNT IN DAYS OPERATING COST 352 352
AMOUNT IN MONTHS OPERATING COST 12 12

RESERVES FOR GASB 54 FUND BALANCE POLICY
(50% OF CURRENT YR EXPENDITURES IN GENERAL FUND) (1,623,049) (1,623,049)

TOTAL RESERVES AFTER  GASB 54 REQUIREMENTS 1,511,546 0 0 1,511,546

AMOUNT IN DAYS OPERATING COST 170 170
AMOUNT IN MONTHS OPERATING COST 6 6

Page 5 08/13/2015



2015-2016

CAPITAL WATER PROJECTS:

TOTAL WATER CAPITAL PROJECTS- CARRY OVER FY 14/15:

OSAGE WATER LINE 60,700
WHITE ROCK BRIDGE ADD'T ROW 15,000
PARKER 12 INCH W LINE DESIGN 18,870
TOTAL WATER CAPITAL PROJECTS- CARRY OVER FY 14/15: 94,570

CARRY OVER PROJECTS FUNDED BY:
2011 CO
RESERVES (94,570)
TOTAL CARRY-OVER FUNDING (94,570)

NEW WATER PROJECTS FY 15/16:
ABANDONED 8 INCH WATER LINE 10,000
PARKER RD 12 INCH LOOP LINE(LEWIS N, PARKER RD, STINSON RD) 400,000
WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 100,000
DEAD END CONNECTIONS (GRAHAM, PR 5252, HICKORY HILL) 200,000
TOTAL NEW PROJECTS 710,000

NEW PROJECT FUNDING - WATER:
IMPACT FEES FY 15/16 (150,000)
REFUND NTMWD (50,000)
RESERVES (510,000)
TOTAL NEW PROJECT FUNDING (710,000)

TOTAL WF PROJECTS FY 15/16 804,570

CAPITAL ROADWAY AND GF PROJECTS:

TOTAL GENERAL FUND PROJECT CARRY OVER FY 14/15:

RTR PROJECT C CLUB RD/W LUCAS INTERSEC 78,215
RTR PROJECT W LUCAS RD/CC RD TO ANGEL PKWY 1,456,113
BLONDY JHUNE RD PROJECT 90,000
TOTAL GENERAL FUND PROJECTS- CARRY OVER FY 14/15 1,624,328

CARRY OVER PROJECTS FUNDED BY:

RTR FUNDS (1,227,462)
COUNTY FUNDS (244,000)
IMPACT FEES - ROADS (152,866)

TOTAL CARRY-OVER FUNDING (1,624,328)

NEW GENERAL FUND PROJECTS FY 15/16:
BLONDY JHUNE BRIDGES/SAFETY PROJECT 2,000,000
BAIT SHOP INTERSECTION 100,000
ESTATES PKWY/ROCK RIDGE RD(PARTIALLY FUNDED) 320,000
PARKS PROJECT 117,480
TOTAL NEW PROJECTS 2,537,480

NEW PROJECT FUNDING - GENERAL FUND:
IMPACT FEES FY 15/16 - ROADS (420,000)
2015 COS (2,000,000)
PARKS GRANT (106,480)
RESERVES (11,000)
TOTAL NEW PROJECT FUNDING (2,537,480)

TOTAL GF PROJECTS FY 15/16 4,161,808

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS FY 15/16 4,966,378

PROPOSED BUDGET
CAPITAL FUND SUMMARY

Page 6 08/13/2015



2014-2015 2015-2016
2013-2014 AMENDED

ACTUAL BUDGET

GENERAL FUND:

Beginning Balance General Fund (Restricted) 818,443 818,443 971,572

Revenue

Roadway Impact Fees(11-4500) 298,000 200,000
Roadway  Improvements LCA  (21-4913) 141,000
Roadway  Capital  (11-4990) Brockdale 0 0
Roadway Fees Brockdale(11-4989) Improv 0 50,000 50,000
Total Revenues 818,443 489,000 250,000

Expenditures

Capital Projects 219,710 572,866
LCA Roadway Improvements 116,161
Brockdale Improv 0
Total Expenditures 0 335,871 572,866
Total General Fund Restricted 818,443 971,572 648,706

Restricted for LCA Improvements 24,839 24,839
Restricted for Brockdale Capital Improv 21,535 21,535 21,535
Restricted for Brockdale Improvements 26,400 76,400 126,400

Total 3rd Party Restricted 47,935 122,774 172,774

General Fund Ending Bal (Restricted for Roads) 770,508 848,798 475,932

Total General Fund Restricted 818,443 971,572 648,706

WATER FUND:

Beginning Balance - Water Fund (6,144,655) (6,144,655) (6,203,273)

Revenue

Water Impact Fees 0 138,000 150,000
Development Fees -Sewer 0 0

Total Revenues 0 138,000 150,000

Expenditures

Capital Projects - Water 196,618 804,570
Capital Projects- Sewer 0 0

Total Expenditures 0 196,618 804,570

Revenues less Expenditures 0 (58,618) (654,570)

Water Fund Ending Balance (6,144,655) (6,203,273) (6,857,843)

Impact/Development Fee Summary

PROPOSED 

BUDGET

Page 7 08/13/2015



CITY OF LUCAS PROPERTY TAX RATES

Property tax is by far the largest source of revenue in the City of Lucas General Fund.

Property tax is collected by Collin County and distributed to the City.  The City's property 

tax is budgeted  at a rate of .320661 for 2015.  This tax rate is the same as the previous

year. Listed below is a table depicting the recent history of the City of Lucas property tax rate.

Tax Year O&M I&S Total

2005 0.243510 0.133090 0.376600

2006 0.248146 0.126854 0.375000

2007 0.244260 0.130740 0.375000

2008 0.250509 0.123668 0.374177

2009 0.252040 0.122137 0.374177

2010 0.247231 0.126946 0.374177

2011 0.257723 0.116454 0.374177

2012 0.261218 0.112959 0.374177

2013 0.254005 0.101611 0.355616

2014 0.233068 0.087593 0.320661

2015 0.215514 0.105147 0.320661

As you can see in the chart below, the property tax rate for the City of Lucas 

is very favorable in comparison to other cities within the area.

City O&M I&S Total

Wylie 0.597978 0.280922 0.878900

Sachse 0.559034 0.211785 0.770819

Princeton 0.492830 0.228970 0.721800

Farmersville 0.462870 0.322866 0.785736

Anna 0.545826 0.103174 0.649000

Celina 0.432737 0.212263 0.645000

Melissa 0.463642 0.146358 0.610000

Murphy 0.336270 0.213730 0.550000

Allen 0.398361 0.141639 0.540000

Prosper 0.356301 0.163699 0.520000

Fairview 0.221733 0.138266 0.359999

Parker 0.290294 0.060690 0.350984

Lucas 0.233068 0.087593 0.320661

Fiscal Year 2014 Tax Rates

Page8 08/13/2015



41%

25%
2%

12%

12%
8%

General Fund Revenue FY15/16 
Total $ 4,662,920

PROPERTY TAXES

OTHER TAXES

FINES, FORFEITURES, FEES &
SERVICE CHARGES
LICENSES & PERMITS

FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUE

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES

Page 9 08/13/2015



4%

12%
7%

27%

3%

37%

10%

General Fund Expenditures by Department FY15/16 
Total $4,415,329

CITY SEC/CITY COUNCIL

ADMIN/FINANCE

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

PUBLIC WORKS

PARKS

FIRE

NON-DEPARTMENTAL

Page 10 08/13/2015



11 -GENERAL FUND 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED

REVENUE ACTUAL BUDGET  BUDGET DESCRIP
PROPOSED 

BUDGET

4011         PROPERTY TAXES 1,677,274 1,778,916 1,778,916 1,857,509
4012         PROPERTY TAXES-DEL. 49,427 22,000 22,000 22,000
4015         PROPERTY TAXES-P&I 12,311 7,600 12,050 13,000

TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES 1,739,012 1,808,516 1,812,966 1,892,509

OTHER TAXES

4101         SALES TAX 549,370 514,800 602,046 603,000
4101-100 SALES TAX  STREETS 132,331 132,600 132,600 132,600
4101-200 SALES TAX PROP TAX REDUC 132,331 132,600 132,600 132,600
4102         FRANCHISE-ELECTRICAL 234,361 210,000 230,000 230,000
4103         FRANCHISE-TELEPHONE 7,532 7,300 7,300 7,300
4104         FRANCHISE-CABLE 44,893 40,000 46,000 46,000
4105         FRANCHISE-GAS 28,591 25,000 25,000 25,000
4106         FRANCHISE-CABLE PEG 3,648 3,200 3,200 3,200

TOTAL OTHER TAXES 1,133,057 1,065,500 1,178,746 1,179,700

FINES & FORFEITURES

4202         COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND 275 40 10 40
4203         COURT SECURITY FUND 206 25 5 25
4204         COURT COST-CITY 807 120 20 30
4205         TRAFFIC FINES 14,852 1,200 800 300
4206         COURT COST-STATE 3,782 400 100 100
4208         STATE JURY FEE 275 30 10 10
4212         JUDICIAL FEES-STATE 371 50 10 15
4213         JUDICIAL FEES-CITY 41 8 2 2
4215         OMNI STATE FEE 140 0
4216         OMNI MGMT FEE 42 0
4217         OMNI LOCAL FEE 28 0
4218         INDIGENT DEFENSE FEE 138 2

TOTAL FINES & FORFEITURES 20,957 1,873 959 522

LICENSES & PERMITS
0

4301         GEN CONTRACTOR REG. 17,880 10,500 13,000 14,000
4361         ZONING REQUEST 350 700
4362         SPECIFIC USE PERMITS 0 600 600 600
4363         VARIANCE REQUEST 900 300 300 600
4365         BLDG PERMITS-NEW HOMES 318,155 289,000 359,000 360,000
4367         BLDG PERMITS-ACC. 15,212 14,525 14,525 12,000
4368         BLDG PERMITS-REMODEL 4,911 4,000 4,000 4,000
4369         BLDG PERMITS-COMM. 21,730 8,000 48,000 44,000
4371         ELECTRICAL PERMITS 1,300 1,000 1,000 1,000
4372         PLUMBING PERMITS 2,875 1,950 1,950 2,000
4373         HEATING & A/C PERMITS 1,550 950 950 1,400
4374         FENCE PERMITS 2,550 2,500 2,500 4,000
4375         SWIMMING POOL PERMITS 20,330 20,000 20,000 20,000
4376         WEIGHT LIMIT PERMITS 50,575 40,000 40,000 45,000
4377         ROOF PERMITS 1,500 800 800 700
4378         SPRINKLER SYST PERMITS 6,500 5,000 6,500 6,540
4379         DRIVEWAY PERMIT 1,150 900 900 900
4380         SIGN PERMIT 2,375 1,700 1,700 1,500
4382         STORM WATER MGMT PERMIT 4,875 3,500 3,500 4,000
4384         SOLICITATION PERMIT 0 0 30 90
4390         PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 2,370 1,250 1,250 1,600
4391         BURN PERMITS 2,750 2,300 600 0
4395         HEALTH SERVICE PERMITS 3,000 3,000 3,000 14,000
4398         MISC LICENSES & PERMITS 675 650 650 500
4611         FIRE SPRINKLER PERMIT 20,600 17,200 25,000 25,000

TOTAL LICENSES & PERMITS 503,763 429,625 550,105 564,130

FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUE
4612         COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT 36,938 36,938 8,221
4613         SEIS LAGOS INTER-LOCAL 157,065 175,000 192,655 242,143
4614         AMBULANCE SERVICES 17,389 67,000 67,000 67,000
4615         LISD EMS SERVICE 8,100 8,100 8,100
4999         FIRE DISTRICT TRANSFER IN 0 245,726 205,726 246,000

TOTAL FIRE DEPARTMENT REVENUE 211,392 532,764 481,702 563,243

Page 11 08/13/2015



11 -GENERAL FUND 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED

REVENUE ACTUAL BUDGET  BUDGET DESCRIP
PROPOSED 

BUDGET

NOTE PROCEEDS

4800         NOTE PROCEEDS 345,000 0 0 0

TOTAL NOTE PROCEEDS 345,000 0 0 0

FEES & SERVICE CHARGES

4424         PLAT & REPLAT FEES 12,640 12,500 15,500 15,000

4425         RE-INSPECTION FEES 3,450 4,000 4,000 4,000

4426         FEES-BUILDING PROJECTS 2,400 2,400 2,400 3,500

4427         PUBLIC IMPRV/3% INSPEC 51,463 69,000 109,000 60,000
4497         PUBLIC INFO. REQUESTS 86 100 100
4498         MISC. FEES & CHARGES 63 75 75 100

TOTAL FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 70,102 88,075 131,075 82,600

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
4911         INTEREST INCOME 10,842 9,000 12,000 10,000
4913         FUEL TAX REFUND 2,400 0
4914         INSURANCE CLAIM REIMB 24,500 0
4915         CHILD SAFETY INCOME 6,400 6,200 6,200 6,200
4916         CREDIT CARD REVENUE 3,376 3,200 3,200 3,200
4917         CERT APP FEE BEER & WINE 750 0 0
4931         RENTAL INCOME 54,090 46,200 77,740 83,400 Rhino/AT&T/Verizon Tower 
4980         PARK DEDICATION FEES 15,000 60,000 60,000 45,000
4981         FACILITY RENTAL 0 100
4982         FACILITY DEPOSIT 0
4985         GRANT REVENUES 0 5,500 3,500 11,385 Fire Dept. Grants
4986         FOUNDERS DAY DONATIONS 250 535

4991         STREET ASSESSMENTS 1,300 4,145
4992         SALE OF ASSETS 2,501 148,710 19,000 Sale of land White Rock Trail FY 14/15

FY 15/16 Sale two trucks $10k 
$8k three trailers/ $1k old patrol car

4993         POSTAGE 0 0
4994         CASH DRWR OVR/UND 0 0
4995         REIMBURSEMENTS 5,301 1,000 140
4996         TRANSFER IN 0 135,000
4997         MISCELLANEOUS 23,798 1,900 10,078
4998         PILOT TRANSER IN 177,794 187,477 0 201,931

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 328,302 320,477 461,247 380,216
***TOTAL REVENUES*** 4,351,585 4,246,830 4,616,801 4,662,920

Page 12 08/13/2015



11 -GENERAL FUND 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
CITY COUNCIL FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES

6100-104     CITY COUNCIL FEES 0 9,000 0 9,000 Quarterly Pmt for City Council
6100-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 98 100 100
6100-127     MEDICARE 98 150 150 150

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 196 9,250 150 9,250

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
6100-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,301 1,500 1,500
6100-202     POSTAGE 20 100 100 0
6100-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 257 1,500 1,500 1,500
6100-210     COMPUTER SUPPLIES 0
6100-222     AUDIO/VISUAL DEVICES 0 2,900 2,900
6100-228     MEETING SUPPLIES 0 75 75
6100-233     EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 0 100 100

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 1,578 6,175 6,175 1,500

PURCHASED SERVICES:
6100-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 2,039 2,500 2,500 13,500 $500 per Council Member

$10K Planning Retreat
6100-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 3,107 0 0
6100-323     CELL PHONE 806 1,200 1,200
6100-331     ELECTRICITY 1,078 1,500 1,500 recl to non-dept.

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 7,030 5,200 5,200 13,500

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
6100-440     BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 0 250 250 0
6100-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 1,901 2,500 2,500 2,500
6100-451     SOFTWARE, BOOKS, & CDS 456 600 600 700 $100 per Council Member
6100-442     CONTINGENCY FUND 3,259 5,500 2,500
6100-444     FOUNDER'S DAY 14,749 20,000
6100-468     CITY COUNCIL FEES 9,000 9,150 0

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION SERV 29,365 28,850 15,000 3,200

NON-CAPITAL EXPENSE
6100-420    EQUIPMENT 0 3,699 3,699

TOTAL NON-CAPITAL EXPENSE 0 3,699 3,699 0

TOTAL CITY COUNCIL 38,169 53,174 30,224 27,450

PROPOSED 

BUDGET

Page 13 08/13/2015



11 -GENERAL FUND 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
CITY SECRETARY FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET  BUDGET DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES
6110-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT 66,850 66,833 55,661 69,021
6110-103     SALARIES - TEMPORARY 16,933
6110-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 192 200 0 225
6110-113     LONGEVITY PAY 402 448 155 48
6110-122     TMRS 5,242 6,526 7,079 9,401
6110-123     GROUP INSURANCE 6,756 7,392 6,580 7,344
6110-124     SUPP'L INSR BENEFIT 296 300 300 300
6110-127     MEDICARE 1,001 991 1,046 1,001
6110-129     ST/LT DISABILITY 341 335 335 250
6110-133     TELEPHONE ALLOWANCE 0 0 480

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 81,080 83,025 88,090 88,070

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
6110-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 832 1,100 1,100 2,600 Inc NL Paper $1.8k
6110-202     POSTAGE     6,220 8,000 8,000 8,000 Newsletter Postage

6110-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 0 0 100

6110-210     COMPUTER SUPPLIES 0 0 50

6110-238     PRINTING & COPYING 0 0
6110-239     RECORDS MANAGEMENT 1,145 1,500 1,500 1,500

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 8,197 10,600 10,600 12,250

PURCHASED SERVICES
6110-303     TELEPHONE 1,085 1,250 1,250 Reclass to non-departmental
6110-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 762 580 930 3,015 See Travel Plan
6110-306     ADVERTISING/PUBLIC NOTICES 13,633 15,000 15,000 15,000 Addt advertising 
6110-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 9,375 14,180 5,180 6,700 $4k Franklin/$2.7k MCCI
6110-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 3,504 0 0

6110-349     FILING FEES 758 2,000 2,000 2,000

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 29,117 33,010 24,360 26,715

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
6110-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 0
6110-443     DUES/LICENSES 240 325 325 125 See Detail Schedule
6110-445     ELECTIONS 11,270 13,000 9,000 14,000 $6k Nov/$8k May
6110-451     SOFTWARE, BOOKS & CD'S 326 500 500 1,500 See Detail Schedule

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRAVICE SERVICES 11,836 13,825 9,825 15,625

NON-CAPITAL EXPENSE
6110-411 FURNITURE & FIXTURES 4,000

TOTAL NON-CAPITAL EXPENSE 4,000

TOTAL CITY SECRETARY 130,230 140,460 136,875 142,660 -                         

PROPOSED 

BUDGET

Page 14 08/13/2015



11 -GENERAL FUND 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET  BUDGET DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES
6200-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT  131,669 151,206 156,836 173,509
6200-102     SALARIES - NON-EXEMPT 83,614 106,454 112,556 117,779
6200-103     SALARIES - PART - TIME 16,250 3,414 3,045 22,464
6200-111     OVERTIME 0 550 550 1,900 $1.4k F Day/$500 other
6200-112     WORKERS' COMP  511 540 540 800
6200-113     LONGEVITY PAY  1,016 1,322 1,272 1,508
6200-122     TMRS   15,140 25,225 33,482 42,936
6200-123     GROUP INSURANCE   25,232 36,960 30,506 36,720
6200-124     SUPP'L INSR BENEFIT 986 1,440 1,440 1,500
6200-127     MEDICARE  3,427 3,794 3,931 4,570
6200-129     ST/LT DISABILITY 920 1,235 1,341 1,350
6200-131     UNEMPLOYMENT 8,172 0
6200-133     TELEPHONE ALLOWANCE 375 900 900 1,860 $40 per mo CM & LE/ $75 per mo JC
6200-141     CAR ALLOWANCE  2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 289,712 335,440 348,799 409,296

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
6200-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 7,635 7,470 7,470 6,000 $800 HR /$3K Paper Costs City Wide

6200-202     POSTAGE 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,700 General Fund City Wide Costs

6200-203     SUBSCRIPTIONS 0 400 400 450 HR-FLSA
6200-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 2,494 4,170 4,170 2,200
6200-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 42 300 300 525 $75 per person
6200-210     COMPUTER SUPPLIES 0 0 350 $50 per person
6200-211     MEDICAL & SURGICAL SUPPLIES 0 0
6200-238     PRINTING & COPING 200 250 250 0 Inc with office supplies

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 11,371 13,590 13,590 11,225

PURCHASED SERVICES:
6200-302     AUDITING & ACCOUNTING 10,020 12,500 12,500 12,500
6200-303     TELEPHONE 2,606 3,400 3,400 0 recl to non-departmental
6200-305     SOFTWARE SUPPORT/MAINT 16,724 12,700 10,700 11,300 Maint incode:AP/PR/GL/Purch/FA/Court
6200-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 8,322 8,319 8,319 8,320 $4,030 CM/$2,790 Finance/$1,500 HR/

See Travel Plan
6200-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 7,706 7,100 10,584 3,800 See Detail Schedule
6200-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 3,154 6,400 6,400 6,400 Konica Lease
6200-318     TAX COLLECTION 1,925 2,120 2,000 2,200
6200-319     CENTRAL APPRAISAL FEE 15,059 17,144 15,660 18,165 Increase in FY 15 fee
6200-321     STATE COMPTROLLER (CT FEES) 4,342 4,000 1,000 300 Court cases handled in Plano
6200-321.1 OMNI COURT FEES 6 25
6200-322     CONTRACTS 2,750 2,000 1,000 1,050 Municipal Court Judge
6200-323     CELL PHONE 311 480 480 Monthly ipad chg for CM
6200-324     INMATE BOARDING 419 500 500 426 6 days @ $71 per day
6200-325     LIABILITY INSURANCE 20,861 24,000 24,000 28,000 Incr approx 15% per year
6200-331     ELECTRICITY 2,387 3,700 3,700 recl to non-dept.
6200-333     UTILITIES, WATER 440 500 500 recl to non-dept.

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 97,032 104,383 100,768 92,941

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
6200-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 1,081 2,500 2,500 3,300 $1.4k qtrly all-hands meetings

Holiday lunch $400/Awards $1.5k
6200-443     DUES/LICENSES 4,158 4,710 4,710 4,528 See Detail Schedule
6200-444     EMPLOYMENT SCREENING 105 2,000 2,000 2,000 City Wide
6200-445     CHILD SAFETY EXPENSE 609 1,000 1,000 500 Founder's Day give-a-ways
6200-446     LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 0 0 0
6200-497     CREDIT CARD FEES 2,377 1,800 2,000 2,200 Increase in credit card activity
6200-498     MISCELLANEOUS 5,300 500 500 500

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMIN SERVICES 13,630 12,510 12,710 13,028

NON-CAPITAL EXPENSE
6200-411     FURNITURE & FIXTURES 5,000 5,000

TOTAL NON-CAPITAL EXPENSE 0 5,000 5,000 0
TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 411,745 470,923 480,867 526,490

PROPOSED 

BUDGET

Page 15 08/13/2015



11 -GENERAL FUND 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
PUBLIC WORKS FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET  BUDGET DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES
6210-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT 34,867 58,856 54,017 66,209
6210-102     SALARIES - NON-EXEMPT 122,995 59,186 91,597 69,012
6210-103     SALARIES - TEMPORARY 14,400 14,400 14,400
6210-111     OVERTIME 0 500 1,000 2,725 $1,725 Events/$1k other
6210-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 4,973 3,600 3,652 3,681
6210-113     LONGEVITY 628 671 492 605
6210-122     TMRS 12,056 11,556 17,982 19,009
6210-123     GROUP INSURANCE 26,064 19,219 23,941 19,094
6210-124     SUPP'L INSR BENEFIT 930 750 936 780
6210-127     MEDICARE 2,279 1,802 2,638 2,234
6210-129     ST/LT DISABILITY 648 589 831 831
6210-141     CAR ALLOWANCE 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 206,640 172,329 212,687 199,780

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
6210-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 355 500 750 500
6210-202     POSTAGE 46 100 100 Recl to Dept. 6200
6210-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 312 800 1,050 400 $100 per person
6210-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 1,781 2,500 2,500 0 Reclass to acct 209
6210-206     FUEL & LUBRICANTS 6,415 10,000 10,368 7,500
6210-208     MINOR APPARATUS 1,681 3,500 3,500 5,000
6210-209     PROTECTIVE CLOTHING/UNIFORMS 1,398 1,400 1,823 6,075 See Detail Schedule
6210-210     COMPUTER SUPPLIES 225 $50 per person
6210-211     MEDICAL SUPPLIES 100 100 100 100
6210-214     CLEANING SUPPLIES 341 2,000 2,000 1,000
6210-223     SAND/DIRT 365 1,000 1,000 1,000
6210-224     ASPHALT/BASE/CONC/CULVERT 58,114 30,000 30,000 20,000

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 70,908 51,900 53,190 41,800

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR

6210-231     FACILITY MAINTENANCE 3,032 4,000 4,000 4,000
6210-232     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 3,896 5,100 5,710 6,000
6210-234     WASTE DISPOSAL 0 2,000 2,000 1,000
6210-298     MAINTENANCE & PARTS - MISC 1,589 2,000 2,611 2,600

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 14,950 20,600 21,821 61,100

PURCHASED SERVICES

6210-303     TELEPHONE 2,800 3,200 3,200 Recl to Non-Departmental
6210-307     TRAVEL/TRAINING 1,166 6,500 6,500 6,870 See Travel Plan
6210-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 29,311 80,000 80,000 61,500 See Detail Schedule
6210-311     ENGINEERING FEES 400 0
6210-322     CONTRACTS, OTHER 697 4,000 4,000
6210-323     CELL PHONE 3,442 3,000 3,417 3,500
6210-325     AUCTION FEES 2,109 2,000 2,000 0
6210-331     UTILITIES, ELECTRIC 5,074 7,000 7,000 3,800 City Hall recl to non-dept.
6210-332     DRAINAGE 0 33,000 33,000 0
6210-334     STREET LIGHTING 14,893 14,000 14,000 14,000
6210-346     EQUIPMENT RENTAL -54 10,000 10,000 5,000 Emergency equip rental

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 59,838 162,700 163,117 94,670

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
6210-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 207 300 311
6210-443     DUES/LICENSES 0 910 0 2,400 See Detail Schedule
6210-444     EMPLOYEE SCREENING 35 910 0
6210-446     LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 100 0

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMIN SERVICES 342 1,210 1,221 2,400

NON-CAPITAL EXPENSE6210-411     FURNITURE & FIXTURES 3,000 3,000
6210-416     IMPLEMENTS & APPARATUS 5,000 5,000

TOTAL NON-CAPITAL EXPENSE 0 8,000 8,000 0

CAPITAL OUTLAY
8210-301     IMPROVEMENTS ROADS 644,359 696,118 696,118 750,000
8210-420     EQUIPMENT 0 0 10,000  Tack sprayer
8210-421     VEHICHLES 30,673 0 40,000 Repl 2 trucks with one new
8210-433     SIGNS & MARKINGS 12,798 20,000 20,000 10,000
8210-452     COMPUTERS 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 687,830 716,118 716,118 810,000
TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 1,040,508 1,132,857 1,176,154 1,209,750

PROPOSED 

BUDGET

Page 16 08/13/2015



11 -GENERAL FUND 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
PARKS DEPARTMENT FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES

6211-102     SALARIES - NON-EXEMPT 36,729 25,859 0
6211-103     SALARIES - TEMP PART - TIME 12,594 18,720 18,720 20,000
6211-111     OVERTIME 500 0
6211-112     WORKERS COMP 1,087 1,100 0 600
6211-113     LONGEVITY 178 157 0
6211-122     TMRS 2,808 2,532 0
6211-123     GROUP INSURANCE 6,362 5,174 0
6211-124     SUPP'L INSR BENEFIT 272 210 0
6211-127     MEDICARE 690 646 275 300
6211-129     ST/LT DISABILITY 163 129 0

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 60,883 55,027 18,995 20,900

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
6211-205    WEARING APPAREL 640 700 0 0
6211-206    FUEL & LUBRICANTS 4,863 6,000 0
6211-208    MINOR APPARATUS 955 3,000 0
6211-209    PROTECTIVE CLOTHING 513 700 0
6211-212    CHEMICALS 8,746 9,000 5,000 0
6211-223    SOIL PREP 4,971 7,000 1,800
6211-229    MAINT & PARTS 3,028 4,500 0
6211-232    MAINT & PARTS AUTO 247 850 0

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 23,963 31,750 6,800 0

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR
6211-233     EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 2,136 3,000 3,000 3,000

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 2,136 3,000 3,000 3,000

PURCHASED SERVICES
6211-307     TRAVEL 1,000 3,000 0
6211-322     CONTRACTS OTHER (MOWING) 0 1,000 64,700 75,500 See Detail Schedule
6211-323     CELL PHONE 911 1,000 0
6211-331     UTILITIES, ELECTRIC 1,727 2,000 2,000 2,000
6211-333     UTILITIES, WATER 4,912 10,000 0
6211-346     EQUIPMENT RENTAL 163 1,000 10,000 10,000

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 8,713 18,000 76,700 87,500

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE
6211-441    APPRECIATION & AWARDS 26 100 0
6211-444    MEDICAL EXAMS 35 0
6211-446    LICENSE AND REGISTRATION 25 1,060 0
6211-498    MISC. LANDSCAPING -576 0

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE -490 1,160 0 0 0

SPECIAL EVENTS
6211-444 FOUNDERS DAY 0 20,000 25,000
6211-445 SERVICE TREE PROGRAM 3,000 3,000
6211-446 KEEP LUCAS BEAUTIFUL 2,000 2,500 Membership dues/ conf.
6211-447 HOLIDAY LIGHTING EVENT 15,000 2,500

TOTAL SPECIAL EVENTS 0 40,000 33,000

CAPITAL OUTLAY
8211-420      EQUIPMENT 20,500 6,100

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 20,500 6,100 0
TOTAL PARKS DEPARTMENT 95,205 129,437 151,595 144,400 0

PROPOSED 

BUDGET

Page 17 08/13/2015



11 -GENERAL FUND 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET  BUDGET DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES
6212-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT 75,548 38,178 39,855 44,507
6212-102     SALARIES - NON-EXEMPT 94,195 114,408 134,124 141,000
6212-106     CERTIFICATION FEES 0 0 1,200
6212-111     OVERTIME 784 625 7,364 5,000 $2.5K  City Events/$1.5K Other
6212-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 1,153 1,200 1,200 1,200
6212-113     LONGEVITY PAY 706 454 452 630
6212-122     TMRS 12,799 14,938 21,571 25,748
6212-123     GROUP INSURANCE 23,306 25,872 25,443 25,704
6212-124     SUPP'L INSR BENEFIT 709 1,050 1,050 1,050
6212-127     MEDICARE 2,323 2,213 2,502 2,742
6212-129     ST/LT DISABILITY 801 716 961 975
6212-131     UNEMPLOYMENT 0 0

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 212,324 199,654 234,522 249,756

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES

6212-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 4,359 5,000 5,000 5,000
6212-202     POSTAGE 850 500 500 Recl to Dept 6200
6212-203     SUBSCRIPTIONS 0 350 350 350
6212-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 339 750 750 400 $100 per person
6212-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 1,140 1,500 1,500 1,500
6212-206     FUEL & LUBRICANTS 3,977 5,000 4,000 4,000
6212-210     COMPUTER SUPPLIES 250
6212-213     SIGNS,FLAGS,LOGOS 0 0
6212-228     MEETING SUPPLIES 0 0

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 10,665 13,100 12,100 11,500

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR

6212-232     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 993 4,200 2,200 4,200 See Detail

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 993 4,200 2,200 4,200

PURCHASED SERVICES:

6212-238     PRINTING & COPYING 0 0 0
6212-303     TELEPHONE 3,109 3,650 3,650 Recl to Non-Departmental
6212-305     SOFTWARE SUPPORT/MAINTENANCE 1,341 1,500 1,500 1,500 Incode
6212-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 5,893 9,245 9,245 7,000 See Travel Plan
6212-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 8,229 70,000 98,000 28,000 See Detail Schedule
6212-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 0 100 100 100
6212-323     CELL PHONE 1,961 2,320 2,320 2,320
6212-331     UTILITIES, ELECTRIC 0 0
6212-349     FILING FEES 131 500 100

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 20,664 87,315 114,915 38,920

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

6212-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 285 400 400
6212-443     DUES/LICENSES 1,144 2,525 2,525 2,495 See Detail Schedule

6212-444     EMPLOYMENT SCREENING 0 0
6212-446     LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 458 1,200 1,200
6212-451     SOFTWARE, BOOKS & CD'S 366 750 750 1,750 $1k New Plan review

$750 Other Software
6212-452     STORM WATER MGMT EXPENSE 1,715 3,000 3,000 4,000

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATION SERVICES 3,968 7,875 7,875 8,245

CAPITAL OUTLAY

8212-420     EQUIPMENT 0 0
8212-452     COMPUTERS 0
8212-421     VEHICLES 0 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 0 0 0
TOTAL DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 248,614 312,144 371,612 312,621

PROPOSED 

BUDGET

Page 18 08/13/2015



11 -GENERAL FUND 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
FIRE DEPARTMENT FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET  BUDGET DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES
6300-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT 118,509 84,864 145,754 166,000
6300-102     SALARIES - NON EXEMPT FF/EMS 323,299 347,500 320,747 483,816
6300-104     LISD REIMBURSEMENTS 8,100
6300-111     SALARIES - OVERTIME 27,989 46,600 46,600 60,000
6300-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION 24,293 25,000 25,000 25,100
6300-113     LONGEVITY PAY 552 852 808 1,340
6300-122     TMRS 35,061 46,891 62,932 95,463
6300-123     GROUP INSURANCE 54,482 64,031 64,031 80,784
6300-124     SUPP'L INSR BENEFIT 2,024 2,400 2,400 3,300
6300-125     AD&D INSURANCE 4,946 5,000 5,000 5,000
6300-126     WATER 2,509 3,000 3,000 3,000
6300-127     MEDICARE 7,804 7,634 8,206 10,165
6300-128     OTHER RETIREMENT 21,120 36,000 171,000 36,000
6300-129     ST/LT DISABILITY 2,000 3,273 3,273 3,900
6300-131     UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 0 0

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 624,588 681,145 858,751 973,868

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES
6300-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 15,657 4,000 4,000 5,200 Records Mgmt addition
6300-202     POSTAGE 488 400 400 700 Patient Questionnaire added
6300-203     SUBSCRIPTIONS 39 150 150 150
6300-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 4,066 4,800 4,800 4,800
6300-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 12,742 9,000 9,000 9,850 Inc Nomex costs
6300-206     FUEL & LUBRICANTS 15,395 15,000 15,000 15,000
6300-207     FUEL - PROPANE/(natural gas) 2,836 2,500 2,500 2,000
6300-208     MINOR APPARATUS 41,750 25,010 25,010 10,560 SCBA Moved to acct 310
6300-209     PROTECTIVE CLOTHING 24,934 20,000 20,000 24,375
6300-210     COMPUTER SUPPLIES 700
6300-211     MEDICAL & SURGICAL SUPPL 46,425 23,750 23,750 29,000 Add't Diagnostic Equipment
6300-214     SUPPLIES - FD 1,121 1,200 3,100 3,500
6300-227     PREVENTION ACTIVITES 3,781 3,200 3,200 3,000

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 169,234 109,010 110,910 108,835

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR
6300-231     FACILITY MAINTENANCE 11,250 13,000 13,000 20,200 New station maint/repurpose rooms 

in old station -bays
6300-232     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 29,578 32,223 32,223 24,808
6300-233     EQUIPMENT MAINT 473 3,000 3,000 2,500

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 41,301 48,223 48,223 47,508

PURCHASED SERVICES
6300-302     FIRE DEPT RUN REIMBURS. 121,750 125,000 133,100 133,100 Includes LISD $8100
6300-303     TELEPHONE 1,519 1,700 1,700 1,900
6300-304     INTERNET 6,406 6,600 6,600 6,600
6300-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 21,168 23,320 23,320 37,022 See Travel Plan

revenue from travel grants $11,385

6300-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 91,474 84,335 86,368 77,940 See Detail Schedule 

6300-310     SCBA 16,200 Reclass from accts 208 and 309
6300-312     PARAMEDIC SCHOOL 6,554 10,400 8,500 12,200 See Detail Schedule

6300-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 4,099 4,890 4,890 7,120 See Detail Schedule

6300-316     911 DISPATCH 29,900 30,000 31,641 33,000
6300-317     AMBULANCE (EMS) SERVICE 22,823 0
6300-323     CELL PHONE 4,725 6,000 6,000 7,500 Add one phone for station captain

6300-325     LIABILITY INSURANCE 6,398 7,200 10,171 15,000

6300-331     UTILITIES, ELECTRIC 17,177 17,000 17,000 18,000

6300-333     UTILITIES, WATER 2,566 3,000 3,000 3,000
6300-337     PAGER SERVICE 525 600 600 700 Active 911 Paging Service
6300-346    EQUIPMENT RENTAL 0 300 300 300

6300-349     EMS/EQP NOTE PAY INT 2,986 8,321 6,750 Break out princ/and interest on pmt

6300-350     EMS EQUIP FINAN PRINC 59,703 62,688 54,367 55,938 Break out princ/and interest on pmt

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 399,773 383,033 395,878 432,270

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
6300-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 3,367 2,200 2,200 2,200 Challenge coin for new station
6300-443     DUES/LICENSES 3,636 6,495 6,495 6,700 See Detail Schedule
6300-444     MEDICAL EXAMINATIONS 633 0 Budgeted in Dept 6200
6300-447     EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERV 3,059 8,500 8,500 5,500
6300-448     CERT TRAINING & EQUIPMENT 12,574 7,200 7,200 4,500

PROPOSED 

BUDGET

Page 19 08/13/2015



11 -GENERAL FUND 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
FIRE DEPARTMENT FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET  BUDGET DESCRIPTION

PROPOSED 

BUDGET

6300-451     SOFTWARE, BOOKS & CD'S 1,067 0 800 MS office replacement
6300-498     MISCELLANEOUS 750 1,500 1,500 1,500

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 25,086 25,895 25,895 21,200

NON-CAPITALIZED EXPENSE
6300-450 COMPUTER HARDWARE 8,946 4,500 4,500 11,800 See Detail Schedule
6300-452 HARDWARE & TELECOM 25,607 12,000 12,000 27,611 See Detail Schedule

TOTAL NON-CAPITALIZED EXPENSE 34,553 16,500 16,500 39,411

CAPITAL OUTLAY
8300-200     BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 0 0
8300-411     FURNITURE & FIXTURES 0 0
8300-416     IMPLEMENTS & APPARATUS 0 0
8300-420     EQUIPMENT 97,402 0
8300-421     VEHICLES 253,807 0

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 351,209 0 0 0

TOTAL FIRE 1,645,744 1,263,806 1,456,157 1,623,092

Page 20 08/13/2015



11 -GENERAL FUND 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION - NON-DEPARTMENTALFISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET  BUDGET ADJ DESCRIPTION

PERSONNEL SERVICES
6999-109     TMRS - COLA 0 45,157
6999-110     PERFORMANCE/INCENTIVE PAY 63,469 22,826 3 percent
6999-130     LT DISABILITY 0

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 0 108,626 0 22,826

MAINT & SUPPLIES
0 0

6999-210     COMPUTER SUPPLIES 0 0
6999-213     SIGNS 0 820 2,500 Sign for Comm Center
6999-214     CLEANINING SUPPLIES 997 1,000 1,000 1,500
6999-231   FACILITY MAINT 18,888 16,200 17,000 21,100 $300 camera monitoring/$800 alarm monitoring

$3k Building maint for community center

TOTAL MAINT & SUPPLIES 19,885 17,200 18,820 25,100

PURCHASED SERVICES
6999-303     TELEPHONE 0 11,500 General Fund City wide internet and phone
6999-305     IT SUPPORT/MAINT 63,055 68,850 68,850 68,850 Includes Fire dept. support
6999-306     SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 18,667 17,249 19,249 20,400 IPS/Cloud/Desktop/archive/Spam/Barracuda Filter
6999-308     CLEANING & PEST CONTROL 12,297 13,700 13,700 17,200 includes add't cleaning for comm center
6999-309      PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0 14,200 2,400 Website redesign annual costs
6999-310     LEGAL SERVICES 66,431 74,290 74,290 75,000
6999-310     CONTRACTS OTHER 27,000 Asbestos/abatement/demolition of old city hall 
6999-326     LAW ENFORCEMENT 84,827 94,827 89,575 95,000 Includes 60  extra patrol hours ($45 per hr) $92.3k 

$92.3k contract estimate
6999-327     CITIZENS ON PATROL 443 1,000 496 0
6999-331     ELECTRICITY 8,400 General Fund City wide /reclass from other depts.
6999-333     WATER 500 General Fund City wide /reclass from other depts.
6999-336     ANIMAL CONTROL 34,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 Estimated 3% increase

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 279,720 304,916 315,360 361,250

NON-CAPITAL EXPENSE
6999-411    FURNITURE 0 0 3,840 60 Chairs/8 round tables for

community center
6999-451    SOFTWARE 0 4,245 3,218
6999-452    HARDWARE, TELECOM 10,700 See Comprehensive IT Budget Listing

8,300 0

TOTAL NON-CAPITALIZED EXPENSE 0 12,545 3,218 14,540

CAPITAL OUTLAY
8999-200     BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 0 59,109 63,509

8999-420      EQUIPMENT 18,600 0
8999-421      VEHICLE 45,300 0
8999-452      HARDWARE, TELECOM 40,196 0 5,150 GIS Mapping System

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 104,096 59,109 63,509 5,150
TOTAL NON-DEPARTMENTAL 403,701 502,396 400,907 428,866

PROPOSED 

BUDGET

Page 21 08/13/2015



21 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
 FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED
REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET  BUDGET  DESCRIPTION

FEES & SERVICE CHARGES

4404 INTERGOV/3RD PARTY REV 1,000,000 324,000 0 400,480 $244K County rollover/$106k parks grant
$50k refund NTMWD for project

TOTAL FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 1,000,000 324,000 0 400,480

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

4800  BOND PROCEEDS 0 2,000,000 2015 CO FUNDS

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 2,000,000 0

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

4911  INTEREST INCOME 7,619 6,650 6,000 6,000
4913 LCA PROJECT FUNDING 0 141,000

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REV 7,619 6,650 147,000 6,000

***TOTAL REVENUES*** 1,007,619 330,650 2,147,000 406,480

PROPOSED BUDGET

Page 22 08/13/2015



21 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
PUBLIC WORKS FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 FISCAL YEAR 
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET AMENDED DESCRIP

CAPITAL OUTLAY

8210-490-105 FM 2551 WASTE WATER GRAVITY SEWER 2,161 0 Complete
8210-490-108  STINSON WATER LINE PROJECT 850,085 983,874 109,844 Complete
8210-490-111  OSAGE WATER LINE PROJECT 6,195 53,785 149,328 60,700 $202,128 Construc CC approv 6-18-15

LIT/Roll over 30% of construc FY 15-16
8210-490-112  ROCK RIDGE WATER LINE PHASE 1 491,376 18,300 2,119 Complete
8210-490-113  SHEPHERDS CREEK WATER LN. 14,020 0 Complete
8210-490-114 LOST CREEK VALLEY PROJ 12,975 0 Complete
8210-490-115 ROCK RIDGE WATER LINE PHASE 2 15,300 619,500 19,500 0 $19.5k Rollover from FY 14/15 Design

LIT $83,588 CC apprv 6-18-15
Reverse construc $516,412

8210-490-116 WHITE ROCK CREEK BRIDGE W LINE A 25,000 30,000 127,406 0 Complete
8210-490-117  ABANDONED 8" AC FM WATER LINE 12,682 0 10,000 FY 15-16 reserves
8210-490-118  NORTH STATION PUMP IMPROVEMENTS 44,700 44,700 Complete
8210-490-119  MCGARITY PUMP STATION IMPROVEMENTS 70,000 70,000 Complete
8210-490-120  PARKER R 12" WATER LINE/SOUTHVIEW TO STINSON 44,030 18,870 CC approved design 12-18-14

Rollover 30% of design FY 15-16
8210-490-121  WHITE ROCK BRIDGE ADD'T ROW 0 15,000

8210-490-122  PARKER RD 12 INCH LOOP LINE 400,000

8210-490-123  DEAD END CONNECTIONS 200,000

8210-490-124  WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 100,000

8210-491-110  FIRE DEPT EXPANSION PROJ 444,618 2,071,261 2,071,261 Complete
8210-491-118  CIVIC CENTER 137,985 137,985 Complete
8210-491-120   PARKS PROJECT 117,480 Trails project/$11k Match -reserves

8210-301  C CLUB RD/W LUCAS INTERSEC-RTR 49,285 20,240 3,504 62,572 RTR 80% Exp/rollover FY 14/15
8210-491-112  C CLUB RD/W LUCAS INTERSEC-CITY 12,321 5,060 876 15,643 City 20% Impact Fees/rollover FY 14/15
8210-302  W LUCAS RD/CC RD TO ANGEL PKWY - RTR 14,880 1,120,000 35,376 1,164,890 RTR 80% Exp
8210-491-113  W LUCAS RD/CC RD TO ANGEL PKWY - CITY 3,720 280,000 8,834 291,223 City 20% Impact Fees/$244k County

Rollover FY 14/15
8210-491-114  ESTATES PKWY/ROCK RD INTERSEC 70,000 320,000 0 320,000 Partial Funding
8210-491-116  BLONDY JHUNE RD PROJECT 300,000 210,000 90,000 Funding Impact Fees/rollover FY 14/15
8210-491-117  ESTELLE/CC INTERSEC 90,000 0 Project cancelled
8210-491-119 FM -1378/LCA TURNLANES 0 116,161
8210-491-121   BLONDY JHUNE BRIDGES/SAFETY PROJECTS 2,000,000 2015 CO
8210-491-122   BAIT SHOP INTERSECTION ROW 100,000
7900-298          BOND ISSUANCE COSTS 60,000 2015 CO

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 2,024,618 6,164,705 3,210,923 4,966,378

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 2,024,618 6,164,705 3,210,923 4,966,378

PROPOSED 

BUDGET

Page 23 08/13/2015



80%

12%

1%

5%

2%

Water Fund Revenue FY15/16 
Total $3,696,420

WATER REVENUE

TRASH SERVICE

WASTEWATER

WATER METER

MISC FEES/OTHER

Page 24 08/13/2015



33%

11%
41%

1% 14%

Water Fund Expenditures FY15/16 
Total $3,611,099

WATER - OPERATING

TRASH SERVICES/RECYCLE

WATER - NTMWD COSTS

WASTEWATER   NTMWD COSTS

DEBT SERVICES UTILITIES

Page 25 08/13/2015



51 - WATER UTILITIES FUND 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
 FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED
 REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET  BUDGET  DESCRIPTION

FEES & SERVICE CHARGES

4461         WATER REVENUE 2,401,874 2,754,782 2,264,900 2,962,370
4462         WATER TAPS & BORES 500 500 500 500
4463         PENALTY & INTEREST 21,835 20,000 35,000 35,000
4467         WATER METER 168,200 125,500 191,000 191,000
4468         WATER METER REPAIRS 6,238 7,000 4,450 5,000
4469         WASTEWATER FEES 30,972 32,000 34,000 34,000
4473         DISCONNECT  CHGS 0 0
4478         TRASH SERVICE 415,348 418,000 429,000 429,000
4497         FH METER RENTAL INC 4,103 4,000 5,000 5,000
4498         MISC. FEE AND CHARGES 0 0
4499         WATER LINES/FEES DEVEL 22,027 0

TOTAL FEES & SERVICE CHARGES 3,071,097 3,361,782 2,963,850 3,661,870

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

4911         INTEREST INCOME 4,321 4,120 3,300 3,300
4912         RETURN CHECK CHARGE 325 250 250 250
4913         NTMWD REFUND 51,750 31,000 71,000 31,000
4914         INSURANCE CLAIM REIMB 0 15,932
4995         REIMBURSEMENTS 0 0
4996         TRANSFER IN 0 305,373 Trsf Reserves Register Replac $160,850

$144,523 Revenue Shortfall FY 14-15

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 56,396 35,370 395,855 34,550

*** TOTAL REVENUES *** 3,127,493 3,397,152 3,359,705 3,696,420

PROPOSED BUDGET

Page 26 08/13/2015



51 - WATER UTILITIES FUND 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
 FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET  BUDGET DESCRIP

PERSONNEL SERVICES

6400-101     SALARIES - EXEMPT  199,075 215,704 218,117 238,825
6400-102     SALARIES - NON-EXEMPT 88,829 187,539 181,981 200,141
6400-103     SALARIES - TEMPORARY 3,968 3,168
6400-106     CERTIFICATION FEES       4,279 6,000 6,000 6,300 $5K CERTFICATION/$1.3K On Call Pay
6400-109     TMRS-COLA 13,488 0
6400-110     PERFORMANCE/INCENTIVE PAY 0 22,427 0 6,931 3 percent
6400-111     OVERTIME 16,897 20,000 20,000 23,500 $3.5K City Events/$20K Other
6400-112     WORKERS' COMPENSATION  4,837 8,400 8,400 8,500
6400-113     LONGEVITY PAY  1,639 2,314 1,844 2,185
6400-122     TMRS   22,569 39,478 49,833 63,907
6400-123     GROUP INSURANCE  34,414 60,614 55,962 58,018
6400-124     SUPP'L INSR BENEFIT 1,461 2,460 2,199 2,370
6400-127     MEDICARE   4,489 5,847 6,167 6,799
6400-129     ST/LT DISABILITY 1,341 1,927 1,927 2,000
6400-130     LT DISABILITY 0 0
6400-131     UNEMPLOYMENT COMP 9,250 0
6400-141     CAR ALLOWANCE 3,600 3,600 3,600 3,600

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 387,398 589,798 568,448 623,076

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES

6400-201     OFFICE SUPPLIES 750 800 800 800
6400-202     POSTAGE 2,200 2,000 2,000 2,000
6400-204     FOOD/BEVERAGE 108 600 600 400
6400-205     LOGO/UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 1,200 1,500 1,500 0 Reclass to Acct 209
6400-206     FUEL & LUBRICANTS 11,287 17,000 17,000 12,000
6400-207     FUEL - PROPANE 894 2,000 2,000
6400-208     MINOR APPARATUS 2,103 3,000 3,000 5,000
6400-209     PROTEC CLOTHING/UNIFORMS 1,000 2,000 2,000 6,075 See Detail Schedule
6400-210     COMPUTER SUPPLIES 225
6400-211     MEDICAL SUPPLIES 100 100 100 100
6400-212     CHEMICALS 0 300 300 300
6400-222     MISCELLANEOUS 38 500 500 500
6400-223     SAND/DIRT 491 1,000 1,000 1,000
6400-224     ASPHALT/FLEXBASE/CONCRETE 2,500 2,500 2,500

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 20,171 33,300 33,300 30,900

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR

6400-231     FACILITY MAINTENANCE 1,160 1,100 1,100 1,100
6400-232     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 4,536 4,700 4,700 4,500
6400-233     REPAIR & MAINT WTR FACILITIES 35,722 60,000 92,788 113,000 See Detail Schedule

6400-234      REPAIR & MAINT SEWER FACIL 179 5,000 5,000 0

TOTAL MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 41,597 70,800 103,588 118,600

PURCHASED SERVICES:

6400-237     TRASH SERVICES/RECYCLE 367,134 372,000 380,000 380,000
6400-302     AUDITING & ACCOUNTING 9,650 12,500 12,500 12,500
6400-303     TELEPHONE 4,254 5,400 5,400 5,400
6400-304     UB PROCESSING 20,000 21,000 22,200 23,500
6400-305     SOFTWARE SUPPORT/MAINT 8,464 10,525 10,525 10,000 $8.9k Incode
6400-307     TRAINING & TRAVEL 5,403 8,073 8,073 3,925 See Travel Plan
6400-309     PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 40,029 63,700 63,700 71,000 See Detail Schedule/$13K Water Fee Study
6400-311     ENGINEERING FEES 750 0
6400-313     MAINTENANCE AGREEMENTS 5,347 6,400 6,400 6,400 Konica Lease 
6400-315     WATER - NTMWD 1,206,893 1,326,325 1,326,325 1,470,901 Est NTMWD rate $2.34 per 1,000 gallons w $2.11
6400-316     WASTEWATER   NTMWD 22,026 25,000 25,500 27,400
6400-323     CELL PHONE 3,705 5,000 5,000 5,000
6400-325     LIABILITY INSURANCE 13,385 15,000 15,000 17,250 Increase approx 15%
6400-331     ELECTRICITY 59,998 65,000 65,000 65,000
6400-333     UTILITIES, WATER 235 300 300 300
6400-346     EQUIPMENT RENTAL 0 5,000 5,000 5,000

PROPOSED 

BUDGET

Page 27 08/13/2015



51 - WATER UTILITIES FUND 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
 FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET  BUDGET DESCRIP

PROPOSED 

BUDGET

TOTAL PURCHASED SERVICES 1,767,273 1,941,223 1,950,923 2,103,576

GENERAL & ADMIN SERVICES/TRANSFERS

6400-441     APPRECIATION/AWARDS 423 500 500
6400-443     DUES/LICENSES 43 1,750 1,750 1,950
6400-444     EMPLOYMENT SCREENING 35 0
6400-446     LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS 470 0
6400-999     PILOT TRANSFER OUT 177,794 187,477 0 201,931

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMIN SERVICES/TRANSFERS178,765 189,727 2,250 203,881

NON-CAPITAL EXPENSE

6400-411     FURNITURE 0 1,345 1,345 500
6400-416     IMPLEMENTS & APPARATUS 1,016 5,000 5,000 0
6400-417     IMPLEMENTS & APPARATUS - SEWER 1,000 1,000 0
6400-452      HARDWARE & TELECOM 0 0 850 Recondition computer for SCADA backup

0 $650 New credit card reader for chip technology

TOTAL NON-CAPITAL EXPENSE 1,016 7,345 7,345 1,350 -                                                                                            

8400-420     EQUIPMENT - WATER 7,000 7,000
8400-422     EQUIPMENT- SEWER 0 7,000 0
8400-421     VEHICLE  33,854 0
8400-451     SOFTWARE, BOOKS & CD'S 0 0
8400-452     HARDWARE & TELECOMM 0 0
8400-490     METER READ SYSTEM 71,544 24,000 154,850 Reclass to account 233

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 105,398 31,000 161,850 7,000

TOTAL WATER UTILITIES 2,501,618 2,863,193 2,827,704 3,088,383

Page 28 08/13/2015



51 - WATER UTILITIES FUND 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
 FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET  BUDGET DESCRIPTION

DEBT SERVICE
7900-209    2002 WATER BOND-PRINCIPAL 100,000 0 0
7900-210    2002 WATER BOND-INTEREST 2,350 0 0
7900-214    2007 CERT OF OBLIG-PRINCIPAL 100,000 100,000 100,000 110,000
7900-215    2007 CERT OF OBLIG-INTEREST 68,425 64,175 64,175 59,713
7900-216    2007 GO REFUNDING- PRINCIPAL 70,000 175,000 175,000 170,000
7900-217    2007 GO REFUNDING- INTEREST 40,420 35,814 35,814 29,328
7900-218    2011 CERT OF OBLIG-PRINCIPAL 80,000 85,000 85,000 85,000
7900-219    2011 CERT OF OBLIG-INTEREST 71,825 70,175 70,175 68,475
7900-298    BOND SALE EXPENSES 200 200 200 200

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 533,220 530,364 530,364 522,716

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 533,220 530,364 530,364 522,716

PROPOSED 

BUDGET

Page 29 08/13/2015



59 - DEBT SERVICES FUND 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
 FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 AMENDED
DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET DESCRIPTION

REVENUES

PROPERTY TAXES
4011      PROPERTY TAXES 663,201 608,810 634,208 826,739
4012      PROPERTY TAXES-DELINQUENT 23,041 8,000 8,000 8,000
4015      PROPERTY TAXES-P&I 5,193 1,900 1,900 1,900
4911      INTEREST INCOME 221 500 200 200

TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES 691,656 619,210 644,308 836,839

TOTAL REVENUES 691,656 619,210 644,308 836,839

 
EXPENDITURES

DEBT SERVICE

7900-209    2002 WATER BOND-PRINCIPAL 165,000 0 0
7900-210    2002 WATER BOND-INTEREST 3,878 0 0
7900-214    2007 CERT OF OBLIG-PRINCIPAL 80,000 80,000 80,000 85,000
7900-215    2007 CERT OF OBLIG-INTEREST 52,913 49,513 49,513 46,006
7900-216    2007 GO REFUNDING- PRINCIPAL 10,000 180,000 180,000 190,000
7900-217    2007 GO REFUNDING- INTEREST 63,920 60,348 60,348 53,392
7900-218    2011 CERT OF OBLIG-PRINCIPAL 125,000 130,000 130,000 135,000
7900-219    2011 CERT OF OBLIG-INTEREST 111,300 108,750 108,750 106,100
7900-220    2015 CERT OF OBLIG-PRINCIPAL 200 150,000
7900-221    2015 CERT OF OBLIG-INTEREST 60,641
7900-298    BOND SALE EXPENSES 200 200 600

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 612,211 608,811 608,811 826,739

PROPOSED 

BUDGET

Page 30 08/13/2015



Item No. 10 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Finance Director – Liz Exum 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

September 3, 2015 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Public Hearing to consider the tax rate for Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 

A. Conduct public hearing  
B. No action necessary, discussion item only 

 
Background Information:  
 
This is the second of two required public hearings.  The first public hearing was held August 20, 
2015. Consideration and action by the City Council will occur on September 17, 2015.  The 
proposed tax rate for Fiscal Year 2015-2016 is as follows: 
 
             $0.215514 for Maintenance and Operations 
  $0.105147 for Debt Service (Interest & Sinking) 
  $0.320661 Total Tax Rate 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
N/A 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
Rate as included in the Proposed Budget for FY 2015-2016. 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Public Hearing only, no action is required. 
 
Motion:  
 
N/A 



Item No. 11 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

September 3, 2015 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider the request by Todd Wintters on behalf of Cleve Adamson Custom Homes for 
preliminary plat approval of a parcel of land situated in the City of Lucas, being part of the John 
W. Kerby Survey, Abstract No. 506, being part of Tract 1 and Tract 2 of Tokalaun Equestrian 
Addition, containing 25.492 acres of land more commonly known as the property adjacent to 
Mary Lee Lane north of the intersection of Mary Lee and Blondy Jhune Road.  
  
Background Information:  
 
The property is zoned R-2 with a minimum lot size of 2 acres.  The gross density is 1 lot per 
2.304 acres, and the average lot size is 2.139 acres with eleven lots proposed on the plat.  
Because there are more than 10 lots within the subdivision and the dead-end street is longer than 
600 feet, mitigation is required per Section 10.03.123 of the Code of Ordinances which will 
include separate entrances and looped water mains.  
 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Preliminary Plat  
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
  NA 
 
Recommendation from Planning and Zoning Commission:  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission voted unanimously to approve the preliminary plat.  
 
Motion:  
 
I make a motion to approve/deny the preliminary plat for a parcel of land situated in the City of 
Lucas, being part of the John W. Kerby Survey, Abstract No. 506, being part of Tract 1 and 
Tract 2 of Tokalaun Equestrian Addition, containing 25.492 acres. 
 



.

”

”

”



Item No. 12 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Finance Director – Liz Exum 

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

September 3, 2015 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider approving Resolution #R-2015-09-00439 adopting City of Lucas Investment Policy. 
 
Background Information:  
 
Resolution # R-2008-10-00320 Investment Policy was adopted by the City Council on October 
8, 2008. Staff has reviewed the city’s investment policy and is presenting a comprehensive 
policy to satisfy the statutory requirements of the Public Funds Investment Act, Government 
Code Chapter 2256. The policy has been reviewed by the City Attorney and financial advisors 
SAMCO Capital Markets, Inc. 
  
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 

1.  Resolution #R-2008-10-00320 Investment Policy 
2.  Resolution #R-2015-09-00439 Investment Policy 

 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
NA 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Approve as presented. 
 
Motion:  
 
I move to approve/deny Resolution #2015-09-00439 adopting an Investment Policy for the City 
of Lucas. 
 























Page 1 of 1  CITY OF LUCAS TEXAS 
Resolution # R-2015-09-00439 

City Investment Policy 
Approved September 3, 2015 

 

RESOLUTION # R-2015-09-00439 
[Investment Policy] 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, 
ESTABLISHING A POLICY GOVERNING THE INVESTMENT OF CITY 
FUNDS. 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 2256 of the Government Code, Commonly known as the 
“Public Funds Investment Act,” requires the city to adopt an investment policy by 
rule, order, ordinance, or resolution; and  
 
WHEREAS, the investment policies must address diversification, safety of 
principal, yield, maturity, with primary emphasis on safety and liquidity; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Lucas City Council find that the Investment Policy attached 
hereto is in the best interest of the city in order to promote sound management of 
the City’s funds. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF LUCAS, COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS; 
 

SECTION I:  The Lucas City Council hereby adopts the attached City of Lucas 
Investment Policy which shall govern the investments of the City’s funds in 
accordance with federal and state laws. 
 
SECTION II:  That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after 
its passage. 

 
DULY RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lucas, Collin 
County, Texas, on this the 3rd day of September, 2015. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Jim Olk, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

_____________________________ 
Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 

































Item No. 13 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Development Services Director Joe Hilbourn  

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

September 3, 2015 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider amendments to the City’s Code of Ordinances, Chapter 15, Master Fee Schedule. 
 
Background Information:  
 
The City has not adjusted the price of building permits since January 4, 2007, and at that time a 
fee schedule was adopted very similar to our neighboring communities.  The majority of our 
neighboring communities have their same fee schedule still in place. 
 
Staff is recommending an approximate 20 percent increase across the board.  
 
 Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Fee schedules from surrounding benchmark cities.  
2. Proposed new fee schedule. 
3. Break down for each of the seven comparison cities cost for a single family permit for a five 

thousand square foot house with an estimated value of $700,000.  
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
N/A 
 
Recommendation:  
 
Discuss approving as presented or suggest an alternate percentage.  
 
Motion:  
 
I hereby make a motion to approve/deny the proposed increases to the City’s Master Fee 
Schedule for all building permit fees listed in Chapter 15 of the City’s Code of Ordinances.  
 
 













































































CHAPTER 15 

MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 

ARTICLE 1.000 RESIDENTIAL BUILDING FEES — NEW AND REMODELED 

Sec. 1.100 Residential Buildings 

 
2,000 sq. ft. or less 
2,001 - 2,500 sq. 
2,501 - 3,000 sq. ft. 
3,001 - 3,500 sq. ft. 
3,501 - 4,000 sq. ft. 
4,001 - 4,500 sq. ft. and over  
Plan Revision                                
 
 

Sec. 1.200 Remodel to Single-Family Dwellings 
   

1,000 sq. ft. or less 
1,001 sq. ft. and over 
*Base fee includes up to 3 inspections. 
There will be a $50 fee per inspection thereafter. 
                                                                              
 
Sec. 1.300 Detached Accessory Buildings (Includes storage buildings, barns, garages, 

greenhouses, gazebos, cabanas, pool houses, porches, etc.) 
 

201 sq. ft. to 1,000 sq. ft. $175.00 
1,001 sq. ft. and up $175.00 plus .45 sq. ft. 
*Over 1,000 sq. ft. base fee includes up to 3 inspections. 
There will be a $50.00 fee per inspection thereafter. 

 

ARTICLE 2.000 COMMERCIAL BUILDING FEES — NEW AND REMODELED 

Sec. 2.100 Commercial Building  
$2,000.00 base fee plus .60 cents per square foot over 1,000 square feet 

Sec. 2.200 Detached Commercial Accessory Building 
$175.00 base fee plus .60 cents per square foot over 1,000 square feet 

 

$1,500.00 
$1,700.00 
$2,100.00 
$2,400.00 
$2,700.00 

  $3,000.00 plus .60 per sq. ft. over 4,500 sq. ft. 
                                                             $600.00  

$175.00 
$175.00 plus .45 per sq. ft. over 1,000 



ARTICLE 3.000 POOLS/SPA 

In-ground swimming pool $325.00 includes 3 inspections 
In-ground swimming pool w/spa $350.00 includes 3 inspections 
Above-ground pool $125.00 
Spa/Hot Tub $125.00 

 
 

ARTICLE 4.000 HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
 

Sec. 4.100 Commercial Business 

Cost of Service for Permanent Food Establishment Permit 
*2 TFER Inspections 

Cost of Service for Each Temporary Event 
*1 TFER Inspection 

Cost of Service for Each Complaint Investigation 
*1 TFER Inspection 

Cost of Service for Mobile Food Vendor (Hot and Cold Truck, Seasonal Vendor) 
*1 TFER Inspection 

Cost of Service for Public Swimming Pool Inspections 
*1 Inspection Per Year 

Hourly Cost of Service for Consultation Outside of the Aforementioned Scope of 
Services 

*Health Plan Review, Health Final and CO Inspections and/or for More 
than 1 Inspection 

ARTICLE 5.000 STORM WATER RUN-OFF 

Single Family Residential Dwellings    $60.00 
Developments 0 - 3 Acres $100.00 
Developments 4 - 10 Acres $250.00 
Developments of 10 Acres or More $600.00 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$450.00 

$ 60.00 

$ 60.00 

$250.00 

$250.00 

$100.00 per hour 



 

 

ARTICLE 6.000 MISCELLANEOUSPERMITS 

 
Activities shall be charged the fee associated with each activity subject to re-inspection fees. 

Awnings, Patio Covers, Carports                                                                                                $60.00                                                              
Flat-Work (sidewalks, drive-ways, patios, etc.)                                                                          $60.00 
  *This is exempt under the 2009 International Residential Code 
     unless elevated 30 inches above grade. Some plan review required. 
 
Roofing                                                                                                                                         $60.00 
New Fence Permit                                                                                                                        $75.00 
Sprinkler System                                                                                                                          $75.00 
Pool Barrier (Fence)                                                                                                                                                              
      Residential                                                                                                                              $75.00 
      Commercial                                                                                                                            $75.00 
Aerial Antenna or Satellite                                                                                                           $75.00                                                                                                                  
      (Small Satellite Dishes are Exempt) 
Screening and/or Retaining Walls                                                                            $60.00 per sq. 100ft. 
Heating and Air Conditioning                                                                                                       $60.00 
Signs                                                                                                                                              $95.00 
Temporary Signs                                                                                                                           $60.00 
Temporary Banner                                                                                                                        $60.00  
Electrical                                                                                                                                       $60.00 
Plumbing                                                                                                                                       $60.00 
Demolition Work                                                                                                                          $60.00 
Water Well                                                                                                                                    $125.00 
Propane                                                                                                                                         $150.00 
      Each additional tank                                                                                                                $50.00 
Weight Limit Permit                                                                                                                      $100.00 
      Four (4) or More Weight Permits                                                                                            $400.00 
 

ARTICLE 7.000 REGISTRATION AND LICENSE 
 

General, plumbing, mechanical and irrigation contractors shall not be eligible to receive a permit 
within the City until they have registered with the City as a contractor and paid the following fee(s). 

 
Water Well Contractor                                                                                                                 $90.00 
HVAC Contractor                                                                                                                        $90.00 
Electrical Contractor                                                                                                                    $90.00 
Irrigation Contractor                                                                                                                    $90.00 
General Contractor                                                                                                                       $90.00 
Master Plumber                                                                                                                            $00.00 
Backflow Tester                                                                                                                           $45.00 



 
 
 

ARTICLE 8.000 INSPECTION 

Re-Inspection                                                                                                                       $100.00 per trip 
Certificate of Occupancy                                                                                                $50.00 
(only in cases of re-occupancy) 
 
                                                                                                                                                                    
 
 
 

 



Breakdown of permit fees for benchmark Cities, for a 5000 square foot house with an estimated value of 
$700,000.  

 

Melissa $3233.75 for first $500,000 and $4.75 for each addition $1,000 of additional value for a total of 
$3328.75 permit fee for a $700,000 dollar home.  

Fate a new home permit is six percent of the calculated building national building value, with a $1,000 
minimum. This is a new calculation for me I am coming up with a permit fee of $4,200, I think it is 
accurate. 

Fairview same as our existing permit fee schedule. $2,500 for first 4,500 square feet and an additional 
$.50 per square foot over 4,500 square feet for a total permit fee of $2,750.  

Celina $3,827 for the first $500,000 and $5 for each $1,000 or fraction thereof. For a total permit fee of 
$3,927. 

Parker same as our existing permit fee schedule. $2,500 for first 4,500 square feet and an additional 
$.50 per square foot over 4,500 square feet for a total permit fee of $2,750.  

Prosper $3,827 for the first $500,000 and $5 for each $1,000 or fraction thereof. For a total permit fee 
of $3,927. 

Sunnyvale $1,200 for first $200,000 plus $2.19 each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof. For a total 
permit fee of $1,309.50 

 

Lucas current Fee: $2,750. 

Lucas proposed Fee: $3,300 the actual increase is roughly 17% 

 

 



Item No. 14 
 
 
 
 
 

Requester: Human Resources Manager Cheryl Meehan  

City of Lucas 
Council Agenda Request 

September 3, 2015 
 

 
Agenda Item:   
 
Consider adopting Ordinance 2015-09-00821 updating Chapter 9 – Personnel of the City’s Code 
of Ordinances. 
 
Background Information:  
 
The current Chapter 9 – Personnel, covers the Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) 
portion of Retirement Programs. 
 
The updated Chapter 9 covers all aspects of retirement systems.  Those items are: 
 

• Social Security – Does not participate. 
• Texas Municipal Retirement System (TMRS) for full time employees 
• Deferred Compensation Plan 457B, mandatory for seasonal, temporary and part time 

employees.  Optional for any full-time employees.  
• Length of Service Award Program (LOSAP) for volunteer firefighters. 

 
Attachments/Supporting Documentation:  
 
1. Ordinance 2015-09-00821 
 
Budget/Financial Impact:  
 
No impact on budget. 
   
Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed revisions to Chapter 9 – Personnel of the City’s 
Code of Ordinances. 
 
Motion:  
 
I move to approve/deny Ordinance 2015-09-00821 updating Chapter 9 – Personnel of the City’s 
Code of Ordinances. 
 

 



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2015-09-00821  
Approved: September 3, 2015  1 

ORDINANCE # 2015-09-00821 
[AMENDING CODE OF ORDINANCE CHAPTER 9, ARTICLE 9.02] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AMENDING CHAPTER 9 TITLED 
“PERSONNEL” BY AMENDING ARTICLE 9.02 TITLED “TEXAS 
MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM” BY RENAMING ARTICLE 9.02 
“RETIREMENT PROVISIONS” AND BY ADDING NEW RETIREMENT 
PROVISIONS; BY PROVIDING A REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LUCAS: 
 
Section 1. That the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lucas, Texas be, and the same is, hereby 
amended by amending Chapter 9 titled “Personnel” by amending Article 9.02, to read as follows: 

 
“CHAPTER 9 

 
PERSONNEL 

 
. . .  

 
ARTICLE 9.02   RETIREMENT PROVISIONS 

 
 
Sec. 9.02.001  Social Security 
 
Prior to 1983, the Federal Government allowed States and Local Government entities to opt out of 
the Social Security System.  The City of Lucas does not participate in Social Security. 
 
Sec. 9.02.002  Texas Municipal Retirement System 
 
The City of Lucas participates in the Texas Municipal Retirement System for all fulltime 
employees.  Specific ordinances providing for participation in the Texas Municipal Retirement 
System, as adopted by the city, are not included in this article, but they are hereby specifically 
saved from repeal and shall be maintained in the office of the City Secretary.  
 
Sec. 9.02.003  Deferred Compensation Plan 457B 
 
Any employee who is not eligible to participate in the Texas Municipal Retirement System must 
participate in the Deferred Compensation Plan 457B, at a rate of 7.5% as required by the IRS since 
the City does not participate in Social Security.  The City of Lucas does not contribute to a Deferred 
Compensation Plan 457B.  This product is also available as a supplemental retirement program for 
all members who participate in the Texas Municipal Retirement System.  Specific ordinances 



City of Lucas 
Ordinance # 2015-09-00821  
Approved: September 3, 2015  2 

providing for participation in the Deferred Compensation Plan 457B, as adopted by the city are 
not included in this article, but they are hereby specifically maintained in the office of the City 
Secretary. 
 
Sec. 9.02.004          Length of Service Award Program (LOSAP) for Volunteer Firefighters 
 
The City of Lucas adopted a Length of Service Award Program for Volunteer Firefighters in June 
of 2015.  Specific ordinances providing for participation in the Length of Service Award Program 
(LOSAP), as adopted by the city are not included in this article, but they are hereby specifically 
be maintained in the office of the City Secretary.” 
 
Section 2. All ordinances of the City of Lucas in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance 
shall be, and same are hereby, repealed, provided, however, that all other provisions of said 
Ordinances that are not in conflict herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 3. Should any word, sentence, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase or section of this 
Ordinance or of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, be adjudged or held to 
be voided or unconstitutional, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
said Ordinances or the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances, as amended hereby, which shall remain 
in full force and effect. 
 
Section 4. An offense committed before the effective date of the Ordinance is governed by 
prior law and the provisions of the City of Lucas Code of Ordinances in effect when the offense 
was committed and the former law is continued in effect for this purpose. 
 
Section 5. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage and 
publication in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Lucas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 

 
DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUCAS, 
COLLIN COUNTY, TEXAS, ON THIS 3rd  DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2015. 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Jim Olk, Mayor  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________________ 
Joseph J. Gorfida, Jr., City Attorney  Stacy Henderson, City Secretary 
(08-25-2015/73013) 


	00 - 09-03-2015 agenda
	AGENDA
	City of Lucas
	City Council Regular Meeting
	September 3, 2015
	6:30 PM
	City Hall – Council Chambers
	665 Country Club Road – Lucas, Texas
	Notice is hereby given that a City of Lucas Regular City Council Meeting will be held on Thursday, September 3, 2015 at 6:30pm at Lucas City Hall, 665 Country Club Road, Lucas, Texas, 75002-7651 at which time the following agenda will be discussed. As...
	Call to Order
	Closed Executive Session (Conference Room)
	The City Council may convene in a closed Executive Session pursuant to Chapter 551.071 of the Texas Government Code.
	Regular Open Session 7:05 PM Council Chambers (or immediately following the Lucas Fire Control, Prevention & EMS District meeting)
	Citizen Input
	The Citizens’ Input portion of the agenda is an opportunity for the public to address the City Council on any subject.  By completing a “Request to Speak” form and submitting it to the City Secretary, citizens have an opportunity to speak at the City ...
	Community Interest
	Pursuant to Section 551.0415 of the Texas Government Code, the City Council may report on the following items 1) expression of thanks, congratulations or condolences; 2) information about holiday schedules; 3) recognition of individuals; 4) reminders ...
	Consent Agenda
	All items listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and are recommend to the City Council for a single vote approval.  If discussion is desired, an item may be removed from the consent agenda for a separate vote.
	Public Hearings
	Regular Agenda
	Certification



	01 - Executive Session cs
	02 - Recess Executive Session cs
	03 - Reconvene city council meeting cs
	04 - Citizen Input
	05 - Community Interest
	06-07 - Consent Agenda cs
	06a - 08-20-2015 cc minutes
	City of Lucas
	City Council Meeting
	August 20, 2015
	7:05 PM
	(or immediately following the Fire District Meeting)
	City Hall - 665 Country Club Road – Lucas Texas
	Minutes
	Call to Order
	Citizen Input
	Community Interest
	Consent Agenda
	Public Hearings
	Regular Agenda
	Public Hearing
	Regular Agenda
	Executive Session


	07a - TML Ballot
	08 - Tokalaun rezoning cs
	08a - Ordinance 2015-09-00820 Tokalaun)
	08a - public hearing notice
	09 - Public Hearing Budget FY 2015-2016 cs
	09a - FY 15-16 City of Lucas Proposed Budget
	City of Lucas Proposed Budget FY 15-16
	cover sheet budget page 2
	Table of Contents FY 15-16
	Org Chart15

	10 - Public Hearing Tax Rate FY 2015-2016
	11 - Tokalaun plat cs
	11a - Preliminary Plat
	12 - Investment Policy cs
	12a - R-2008-10-00320 Investment Policy
	12b - R-2015-09-00439 Investment Policy
	12c - Investment policy
	13 - Agenda request master fee schedule cs
	13a - Benchmark cities fee schedule
	13b - Proposed master fee schedule changes
	13c - Breakdown of permit fees for benchmark Cities master fee schedule
	14- Chapter 9 updates cs
	14a - Ordinance 2015-09-00821 Retirement Benefits
	“CHAPTER 9
	PERSONNEL
	. . .
	ARTICLE 9.02   RETIREMENT PROVISIONS


